
 

Meeting contact Matthew Pawlyszyn on 01257 515034 or email matthew.pawlyszyn@chorley.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Thursday, 17th March 2022, 6.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Chorley and YouTube   
 
 

Agenda 
  

Apologies 
 

Minutes 
 

1 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 27 January 2022 of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee   

 

(Pages 5 - 10) 

2 Minutes of Meeting, Thursday 10 March 2022 of Overview and 
Scrutiny Performance Panel   

 

(To Follow) 

3 Declarations of Any Interests 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest 
in respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
 
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally 
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may 
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave 
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a 
decision on the matter. 

 

 

4 Public Questions 
 

 

 Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a 
question(s) on an item on the agenda will be asked to put their question(s) to 
the Committee.  Each member of the public will be allowed to ask one 
supplementary question within his/her allocated 3 minutes.   

 

 

Scrutiny of the Executive Cabinet 
 

5 Executive Cabinet Minutes 
 

(Pages 11 - 20) 

 To consider the Executive Cabinet minutes of the meeting held on 24 
February, 2022 (enclosed). 

 
 
 
 
 

 



6 Notice of Executive Decisions 
 

(Pages 21 - 92) 

 To view the latest notice of Executive Decisions click here: Forward plan - 
Notice of Executive Decisions - published March 2022 (chorley.gov.uk) 
 
The document is also attached and correct as of 9 March 2022 

 

 

7 Health Scrutiny Update 
 

(Pages 93 - 
106) 

 To consider the Work Plan of Lancashire County Council’s Health Scrutiny 
Committee, and note the Minutes of the Lancashire County Council’s Health 
Scrutiny Committee that took place 1 February 2022.  

 

 

8 Grass Cutting and Verge Update 
 

 

 Executive Member (Customer and Streetscene Services) Adrian Lowe to 
provide a verbal update to the Committee.  

 

 

9 Sustainable Public Transport Second Monitoring Report 2 
 

(Pages 107 - 
116) 

 To receive and consider the report of the Director of Planning and 
Development. 

 

 

10 Developing the Councils Green Agenda - Monitoring Report 3 
 

(Pages 117 - 
148) 

 To receive and consider the report of the Director of Planning and 
Development. 

 

 

11 Quality of Housing Provided by Social Landlords - Monitoring 
Report 2 

 

 

 To receive and consider the verbal report of the Director of Communities. 

 
 

12 Reports from the Task and Finish Groups 
 

 

 Overview and Scrutiny Task Group – Select Move  
To receive a verbal update on the inquiry from the Chair, Councillor June 
Molyneaux. 

 

 

13 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
 

(Pages 149 - 
150) 

 To consider the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2021/22. 

 
 

14 Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair   
 

 

 

Gary Hall  

Chief Executive 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Councillor  John 
Walker (Chair), Councillor  Roy Lees (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Sarah Ainsworth, Julia Berry, 
John  Dalton, Terry Howarth, Hasina Khan, Samir Khan, June Molyneaux, James Nevett, 
Aidy Riggott, William Simmance, Kim Snape and Jenny Whiffen.  
 

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk 

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=930&RP=115
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=930&RP=115


Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 27 January 2022 

 
 
 
Minutes of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Meeting date Thursday, 27 January 2022 
 
Committee  
Members present: 

Councillor John Walker (Chair), and Councillors 
Sarah Ainsworth, Julia Berry, Terry Howarth, 
June Molyneaux, James Nevett, Aidy Riggott, Kim Snape 
and Jenny Whiffen 

  
Committee 
Members present  
virtually  
(non-voting): 

Councillors Roy Lees, John  Dalton, Hasina Khan and 
Samir Khan 

  
  
Officers: James Thomson (Deputy Director of Finance), Irene Elwell 

(Public Protection Team Leader) and Matthew Pawlyszyn 
(Democratic and Member Services Officer) 

  
 

22.OS.46 Minutes of Meeting Thursday, 30 September 2021 of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
The minutes were approved as a correct record. 
 

22.OS.47 Minutes of Meeting Thursday 28 October 2021 of Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance Panel 
 
The minutes were approved as a correct record.  
 

22.OS.48 Minutes of Meeting Thursday 16 December 2021 of Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance Panel 
 
The minutes were approved as a correct record. 
 

22.OS.49 Minutes of Meeting Thursday 13 January 2022 of Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance Panel 
 
Correction raised by Councillor James Nevett, in relation to the time credits, it was in 
reference to members of the public, not staff.  
 

22.OS.50 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
No declarations were made. 
 
 

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 27 January 2022 

 
22.OS.51 Public Questions 

 
There were no public questions. 
 

22.OS.52 Executive Cabinet Minutes 
 
The Executive Cabinet minutes were noted. 
 

22.OS.53 Notice of Executive Decisions 
 
In response to an enquiry about the purchase of Yarrow Valley, it was confirmed that 
the Council planned to plant trees and to develop habitats and biodiversity.  
 
Members cited difficulties in the presentation of the Notice of Executive Decisions and 
queried if there was an alternative format to present them to the Committee.  
 

22.OS.54 Health Scrutiny Update 
 
Councillor Margaret France provided an update from the 16 November 2021, 
Lancashire County Council Health Scrutiny Meeting.  
 
The focus of the meeting was the vaccination programme. At the start of November 
2021, 80% of eligible residents received their first dose, and 70% had their second. 
Vaccine uptake for those aged between 12 and 15 remained low at 31%.  
 
Due to low uptake of the vaccine by those with protected characteristics, efforts had 
been taken to expand vaccination sites to schools, shopping centres, homeless 
centres, and Gypsy and Traveler sites. Improved efforts were also made to engage 
with the Caribbean and African Health Network.  
 
All eligible care homes in the County were visited to deliver vaccinations.  
 
The figures showed that Lancashire had one of the highest vaccination uptakes in the 
UK. 
 
The Health Scrutiny Committee received the report of the Steering Group. The 
hospital programme was to be reviewed once the list of 10 options had to be reduced 
to a shortlist.   
 
Mental Health had been added to the 2021/22 Work Programme. 
 
Members expressed concern that the clinic in Adlington had been closed since the 
start of the pandemic, transport to other clinics involved time and cost, and rumors had 
spread across the village impacting moral. It was explained that the transition and 
change of the local NHS structure significantly impacted decision making. It was 
unlikely that a decision relating to the clinic would be made until July 2022.  
 
At the Teaching Hospital Trust, Council of Governors meeting, it was said that there 
was the intent for a new hospital programme. A longlist had been drawn up, but it was 
warned that the process was likely to be long and drawn out.  
 

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 27 January 2022 

There was no general Nightingale Hospital update, but the Royal Preston Hospital was 
expected to create temporary ward of 60 beds for non-Covid medical patients that 
were unable to be discharged. A significant number of care homes had policies in 
place preventing any admissions for 28 days after a positive Covid-19 case. 
 

22.OS.55 Budget Scrutiny 
 
The Committee welcomed Peter Wilson, Deputy Executive Leader, and Executive 
Member for Resources and James Thomson, Deputy Director of Finance to present 
the report.  
 
Funding had continued to decrease since 2016, uncertainty had created challenges. It 
was hoped that the Council would receive a three-year settlement figure but instead 
received a 12-month retention notice, which included Business Rate and New Homes 
Bonus. 
 
The income stream for the Council was just over £14 million. Projected to be £12.5 
million in 2023 and 12.6 million in 2024. This resulted in a deficit of £2.2 million for the 
year which would increase to £4 million in 2023 and £4.3 million in 2024. The Council 
intended to bridge the gap with a consistent approach to savings.  
 
The Councils approach to efficiency had made financial savings, and Shared Services 
was expected to save both Chorley and South Ribble significant figures.  
 
The Council had gained income through investment sites such as Market Walk, 
Primrose Gardens, Strawberry Meadows, and Logistics House. With future sites to 
include Tatton Gardens, and the Whittle Health Hub.  
 
The combination of efficiency savings, and investment revenue significantly reduced 
the deficit to £281,000 for this year and up to £1.9 million in 2023 and £2.2 million in 
2024. 
 
It was proposed that Council Tax increased by 1.99%. The fair funding review had yet 
to be released, but the process would include an assessment of the Council’s core 
spending power with an assumption of a 2% yearly increase in Council Tax. With the 
1.99% rise, the average band D rate would still be the second lowest rate in the 
County.  
 
Members expressed caution about the rise of 1.99% Council Tax and cited concern 
about the additional increases which caused the cost of living to increase for all 
residents.  
 
The investment priorities for 2022/2023 included £1.5 million revenue investment and 
over £40 million in capital investment. The investments aimed to either support the 
local economy, support Council priorities, or to support local communities. 
 
The investment package provided a broad overview that matched residents’ priorities. 
The Council considered the future and understood the risk of investment. The General 
Reserve Fund contained £4 million, which was to rise to £4.4 million. The Equalisation 
Reserve, which was to protect against any potential downturn equaled £1.2 million. 
The budget was believed to be balanced finely between resident interest and fiscal 
responsibility.  
 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 27 January 2022 

Members asked for additional details around ‘special expenses’ and how the 
calculations were made. It was acknowledged that it was not ideal, and the ‘special 
expenses varied by each ward, the alternative was to have a flat rate across the 
borough and the money equally contributed and distributed.  
 
The Council received £1.6 million of un-ringfenced grants which was originally planned 
to provide Covid-19 support but had since been put aside due to additional Covid-19 
ringfenced support funding.  
 
The leisure centre had a budget of £600,000, the running costs were overestimated, 
and was expected to break even. Significant time was taken to reorganise staff 
contracts, while Covid-19 restrictions were implemented and adhered to. The leisure 
centre held high confidence for profitability. 
 
The Council continued to seek financial returns on assets both in the short and long 
term. It was acknowledged that Covid-19 had changed the approach to work, with the 
continuation of hybrid working, ongoing consideration was given for the Council’s 
premises and spaces.  
 

22.OS.56 Community Safety Partnership 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee welcomed Irene Elwell, Public Protection Team 
Leader and Chief Inspector Chris Abbott of Lancashire Police to provide an overview 
of the Community Safety Partnership.  
 
The previous Crime and Disorder report was presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in July 2020. Within, it stated that the Council would actively engage with 
the Community Safety Partnership. In addition to Chorley Council and South Ribble 
Borough Council, the Community Safety Partnership was made up of the County 
Council, registered social landlords, drug and alcohol services, the Citizens Advice 
Bureau as well as volunteer, community, and faith groups.  
 
For the previous two years, resources had been allocated to pandemic response and 
its implications, in addition to reducing knife crime, antisocial behaviour and Prevent 
work. It was accepted that during the pandemic, the Partnership had become reactive 
rather than proactive. A further update was offered to be presented at a future 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 
A new three-year Lancashire Strategic Assessment was recently published which 
included how crime impacted on community safety. Efforts had been taken to 
strengthen the Partnership, and the Responsibly Authorities Group had been 
reestablished to meet twice a year.  
 
A Monthly priorities meeting to be held which featured an analyst report, identifying 
hotspots for crime and antisocial behaviour. The first meeting to take place the week 
commencing 31 January 2022. One of the first priorities was to develop an action plan 
for serious and organised crime referrals. Other fixed items on the agenda included 
safeguarding and Prevent. 
 
To reduce knife crime and anti-social behaviour, Operation Edge was ongoing. The JJ 
Effect had been expanded into Chorley and South Ribble high schools, the 
programme in cooperation with the police provided support and education to young 
people around knife crime, grooming and criminal exploitation. To combat violence 

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 27 January 2022 

against women, Operation Night Guardian was underway with plain clothed officers in 
premises to quickly respond to reports spiking. Lancashire Talking continued in target 
areas that lacked perceived police visibility to address concerns raised.  
 
Overall, there had been an overall decrease in reports of crime, and antisocial 
behaviour in Chorley. 
 
Members raised concerns of cross border crimes from Greater Manchester, car crime 
and drug dealing. With accounts of drug dealers targeting schoolchildren. It was 
stressed that every instance should be reported in order to build a case. Efforts have 
been made to prevent criminals crossing the border from Greater Manchester into 
Adlington. Arrests had been made relating to burglaries and car crime, including the 
suspects responsible for 56 burglaries in a week in the Bolton area venturing into 
Adlington. Further intelligence gathering was ongoing across the Borough.  
 
The Rural Task Group was raised by Members and the role they played. It was 
clarified that the task group was only 4 officers. The productive Task Group had 
recently received an award for recovering more stolen plant and farming equipment 
than any other force in the country. It was recgonised that the 4-person Rural Task 
Group could not engage with all 3000 farmers at once but encouraged further 
engagement and communication.  
 

22.OS.57 Magistrates and Transport 
 
Irene Elwell provided a verbal update from the Director of Communities in response to 
a query raised in a previous Overview and Scrutiny Committee about residents that 
attending magistrates’ courts across Lancashire since the closure of the Court in 
Chorley.  
 
The Council did not have significant involvement with supporting residents to attend 
Magistrates Courts. Instead it was noted that support was offered by the Court 
Service. The Council did provide support to Community Transport Services such as 
Dial-a-Ride. Members raised that Dial-a-Ride was used primarily by elderly people to 
their day to day activities and had previously spoken at the Sustainable Transport 
Task Group and explained their difficulty in recruiting drivers and it was believed that 
the service unlikely to be offering trips to courts.  
 
 

22.OS.58 Reports from the Task and Finish Groups 
 
The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group – Select Move, Councillor June 
Molyneaux  updated and informed the Committee that the Task Group had scoped the 
review, with the aim to build upon the previous Task Group that was conducted in 
2014. The most recent Task Group invited from non-Task Group Members to share 
their experiences with Select Move. 
 
The next Task Group will feature Preston and South Ribble Officers and Members, to 
share experiences and to explore any potential shared issues. The Task Group will 
also formulate questions to ask in a survey/questionnaire.  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 27 January 2022 

22.OS.59 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
 
Members raised an outstanding recommendation from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Task Group – Sustainable Public Transport, the Cycling Task Group. As Select Move 
was chosen to be the task group, further consideration would be taken to best decide 
the format of the item. 
 
Members wished to explore ‘special expenses’ relating to the budget for further 
information and explanation.  
 
Related to access to school places, more detail had been provided about strategy for 
places. Further concerns were raised, with consideration for an item to be brought to a 
future Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 
It was considered for an invite be made to Councillor Adrian Lowe, Executive Member 
(Customer and Streetscene Services) to attend a future Overview and Scrutiny 
provide an update relating to grass cutting for the following year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 8 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 24 February 2022 

 
 
 
Minutes of Executive Cabinet 
 
Meeting date Thursday, 24 February 2022 
   

Committee 
Members present:       Councillor  Alistair Bradley (Chair) and Councillors 

Peter Gabbott, Alistair Morwood and Adrian Lowe 
 
Committee Members 
Present virtually 
(non-voting):                    Councillors Peter Wilson (Vice-Chair) and Bev Murray 
 
Officers:  Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief Executive), Dave Whelan 

(Shared Service Lead - Legal), Louise Mattinson (Director 
of Finance), Asim Khan (Director (Customer and Digital)), 
Jennifer Mullin (Director of Communities), Jonathan Noad 
(Director of Planning and Development), Andrew Daniels 
(Shared Service Lead – Communications and Visitor 
Economy), Michael Johnson (Policy Officer) and 
Nina Neisser (Democratic and Member Services Officer) 

 
Other Members:  Councillor Sam Chapman, Mark Clifford, Alan Cullens, 

Gordon France, Margaret France, Danny Gee, Tom Gray, 
Hasina Khan and John Walker 

 
 

22.EC.84 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 20 January 2022 of Executive Cabinet 
 
Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 20 January 
2022 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader. 
 

22.EC.85 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
There were no declarations of any interests. 
 

22.EC.86 Public Questions 
 
There were no public questions. 
 

22.EC.87 Revenue Budget Monitoring Quarter 3 2021/22 
 
On Behalf of Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), Councillor 
Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service 
Reform), presented the report of the Director of Finance which set out the revenue and 
reserves forecast for 2021/22 for the Council, based on the position as at 31 
December 2021. 

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 24 February 2022 

 
In summary, there is a forecast underspend against the budget for 2021/22 of 
£1.192m. Following the allocation to reserves, the revised forecast underspend, 
resulting in an increase to General Reserves, is £272k. The Council’s Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy reported that the minimum level of general fund reserves should be 
maintained at £4.0m to cushion against any potential, future financial risks that may 
face the Council. The forecast level of general fund balances as at 31 March 2022, in 
light of the above, will be £4.329m. 
 
Decision: 

1. To note the forecast outturn for revenue and the level of reserves based 
on the position as at 31 December 2021.  

2. To note the virements made to and from the revenue budget during the 
period, as detailed in Appendix 2 of the report.  

3. To approve the creation of reserves from the forecast in-year underspend 
and the reallocation of existing reserves as follows:  

 Use of in year underspends for: 
o £30k to create a reserve to support the celebration of the Queen’s 

Jubilee in the borough  
o £30k to create an allocation from which to make future awards of 

Check Out Chorley grants  
o £200k to create a reserve to support the creation of Apprentice, 

Graduate, and Trainee posts  
o £200k to crease a reserve for investment in play and open space 

areas across the Borough  
o £200k to create a reserve to provide support for local businesses 
o £260k to increase the existing Green Agenda Fund to £500k 

 
Reasons for recommendations: 
To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved. 
 
Other options considered and rejected: 
None 
 

22.EC.88 Capital Budget Monitoring Quarter 3 2021/22 
 
On Behalf of Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), Councillor 
Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service 
Reform), presented the report of the Director of Finance which outlines the overall 
financial position of the Council in respect of the capital programme as at 31 
December 2021, highlighting key issues and explaining key variances over the first six 
months of the year, and provides an overview of various elements of the Council’s 
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021. 
 
The capital budget for 2021/22 was set at £38.1m at Council in February 2021. This 
was increased following approval of the 2020/21 outturn to £46.2m. The monitoring 
report as at 31st July 2021 increased the total budget to £46.6m. This was reduced to 
£42.6m in the quarter 2 monitoring report, approved at Cabinet in November 2021. 
Members noted that the total cost of the Council’s capital investment programme for 
2021/22 has decreased since the quarter 2 monitoring report approved by Executive 
Cabinet, from £42.6m to £28.6m as at 31st December 2021.  
 
 

Agenda Page 10 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 24 February 2022 

Decision: 
1. To approve the revised capital programme as attached at Appendix A, 

which includes approved amendments to the programme, detailed at 
point 11 of the report, since the last Capital Monitoring report was 
approved by Executive Cabinet in November 2021;  

2. To note the variations to the programme (which are detailed by scheme at 
Appendix B and referenced within the body of the report);  

3. To note the position in the Balance Sheet monitoring section of the 
report, in respect of cash, investment and loan balances and debtors, as 
at 31st December 2021. 

 
Reasons for recommendations: 
To ensure the Council’s Capital Programme is monitored effectively. 
 
Other options considered and rejected: 
None. 
 

22.EC.89 Quarter Three Performance Monitoring Report 2021/22 
 
On Behalf of Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), Councillor 
Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service 
Reform), presented the report of the Deputy Chief Executive which sets out the 
performance against the delivery of the Corporate Strategy and key performance 
indicators during the third quarter of 2021/22, covering 1 October 2021 to 31 
December 2021. 
 
The overall performance of key projects is good, with 77% of the projects rated green, 
15% rated amber, and 8% completed. Action plans for those projects rated amber are 
set out within the report.  
 
Performance of the Corporate Strategy indicators and key service delivery measures 
continues to be closely monitored, with 71% performing on or above target, or within 
the 5% threshold. 29% are performing below target and outside of the 5% threshold. 
Where indicators are performing below target, action plans are in place to improve 
performance. 
 
Members discussed the town centre vacancy rates and long-term empty units. The 
council were monitoring this, and it was recognised that there was no requirement for 
extra capital expenditure at this stage. 
 
Decision: 
That the report be noted. 
 
Reasons for recommendations: 
To ensure the effective monitoring of the Council’s performance and delivery of the 
Corporate Strategy. 
 
Other options considered and rejected: 
No other options have been considered. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 11 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 24 February 2022 

22.EC.90 Volunteering Policy 
 
Councillor Bev Murray, Executive Member (Early Intervention) presented the report of 
the Director of Communities which considers the revised Volunteering Policy for 
implementation across Chorley Council and presents the funding requirements of the 
volunteering programme. 
 
The Volunteering Policy was last updated in 2015, since which time volunteering has 
formed a recurring key measure of success within the Corporate Strategy. A review of 
the 2015 Volunteering Policy found opportunities to outline a more ambitious approach 
to internal volunteering at Chorley Council, to bring it more in line with Chorley 
Council’s consistent commitment to supporting individuals into a wide variety of 
valuable volunteering experiences that help to achieve our key aims outlined in the 
Corporate Strategy.  
 
Members noted that volunteers will complement and supplement the work of paid staff 
and will not be used to displace paid staff or undercut their pay and conditions of 
service.  
 
Decision: 

1. To agree to the implementation of the Volunteering Policy (2021), with any 
suggested amendments signed off by the Executive Member.  

2. To agree to fund the requirements of the volunteering programme as 
defined by the policy. 

 
Reasons for recommendations: 
To bring the Volunteering Policy in line with Chorley Council’s consistent commitment 
to supporting individuals into a wide variety of valuable volunteering experiences that 
help to achieve our key aim around developing clean, safe and healthy communities 
as outlined in the Corporate Strategy. 
 
Other options considered and rejected: 
Not updating the Volunteering Policy was an option that was rejected as the current 
policy is not fit for purpose. 
 

22.EC.91 Holiday Activity and Food Programme 2022/23 
 
Councillor Bev Murray, Executive Member (Early Intervention) presented the report of 
the Director of Communities which gives an update on the delivery of the Holiday 
Activity and Food programme (HAF) 2021, provides details and proposed delivery of 
the Holiday Activity Programme for 2022/23, and seeks approval to undertake the 
delivery of HAF 2022/23 with identified delivery model and work with selected 
partners. 
 
LCC have approached Chorley Council to deliver the HAF 2022/23 programme 
following the successful completion of delivery of HAF 2021. The delivery for 2022/23 
would follow a similar model as last year and utilise our key local delivery partners; 
Chorley Inspire Youth Zone and Chorley School Sports Partnership to deliver the 
programme on behalf of Chorley Council. Lessons learned will be implemented to 
build on the successes of 2021.  
 
LCC are finalising the funding amount which will be allocated to Chorley to deliver the 
programme. It is anticipated to be similar to last year but will be increased as it will 

Agenda Page 12 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 24 February 2022 

include Easter provision for HAF 2022 which was not part of HAF 2021. Approximately 
in the region of £320,000. 
 
Chorley has 2591 children aged 4-16 receiving free school meals. The programme will 
help address child food poverty during the school holidays and help support many 
families who struggle during this time. 
 
Decision: 

1. To approve that Chorley Council, take on lead responsibility for the 
delivery of the Holiday Activity Food programme for 2022/23 within 
Chorley and receive all funding associated with the programme from LCC.  

2. To approve that we commission the delivery of HAF 2022/23 to Chorley 
Inspire Youth Zone and Chorley School Sports partnership with a Chorley 
Council Officer within Communities Team whom will work closely 
alongside partners to oversee the programme, ensuring all expected 
delivery is on track and all intended monitoring is achieved. 

 
Reasons for recommendations: 

1. Lancashire County Council are keen to follow the same model of delivery as 
last year and work with Chorley Council to deliver the programme locally. The 
relationship between Chorley Council and LCC worked well for HAF 2021 and 
ensures we have a level of control over delivery locally, can monitor provision 
and identify need across the borough.  

2. Strong links have been created with Chorley Inspire Youth Zone and Chorley 
School Sports Partnership (CSSP). These partners were key to the successful 
delivery of the 2021 programme and we would recommend we continue with 
their commission for 2022. Both partners are a local service provider, have 
excellent relationships with targeted schools and many families and have a vast 
knowledge of the subject area.  

 
Other options considered and rejected: 
To reject LCC’s preferred model of delivery within Lancashire and not take on lead 
responsibility for local delivery across Chorley. LCC will therefore carry out 
procurement of the service. This will result in Chorley Council having no control over 
ensuring delivery meets the needs of local families, that local partners are engaged to 
support delivery and that known vulnerable families are targeted with the opportunity. 
Easter provision will be extremely difficult to deliver with timescales available if an 
outside provider was awarded the contract. For these reasons, this option has been 
rejected. 
 

22.EC.92 Central Lancashire Local Plan Resourcing 
 
Councillor Alistair Morwood, Executive Member (Planning and Development) 
presented the report of the Director of Planning and Development which provides an 
update on the procurement process to provide additional support to the Central 
Lancashire Local Plan team and informs members on the reason for change in 
approach from that approved at Council on 16 November 2021. 
 
Following approval to procure additional support via the Scape Framework, meetings 
were set up with Scape to identify suitable consultants to assist in this process; only 
one option was available. An initial outline cost proposal was received for this work 
which was above the level of support approved. 
 

Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 24 February 2022 

In addition, the Councils identified that the consultant suggested was potentially 
conflicted due to representing landowners in promoting sites through the Local Plan 
process. As such it was felt we could not continue down this route and an alternative 
approach now seeks to utilise existing consultants already supporting the plan 
process, along with policy officer support from the 3 councils, to progress the Local 
Plan to preferred options stage. It was still the aim to progress the plan to preferred 
options in 2022. 
 
Decision: 

1. To approve the revised approach for procurement from the use of Scape 
Framework (as agreed by Council on 16th November), to use existing 
consultants (via routes to be agreed by procurement based on individual 
contract details) and use of provision of further support from council 
planning policy teams.  

2. To note that the £300k is to be funded from the Local Plan budget, which 
is split equally between Chorley, Preston and South Ribble Councils. 
Agree to the continue to release the additional approved funding of 
£300,000 to the Local Plan Budget as agreed by Council in November and 
for detailed approval of individual contracts via EMD. 

 
Reasons for recommendations: 
To ensure the progression of the Local Plan in a timely manner. 
 
Other options considered and rejected: 
Alternative option previously approved by Council on 16th November was 
procurement of support via the Scape Framework. Following pursuit of this option, and 
discussions with each of the three Councils involved in developing the plan, it is felt 
this option was no longer appropriate. 
 

22.EC.93 Exclusion of the Public and Press 
 
Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on 
the grounds they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

22.EC.94 Approval of Revised Terms for the Lease for Whittle Surgery - Site of 239 
Preston Road, Whittle-le-Woods 
 
On Behalf of Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), Councillor 
Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service 
Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director of Commercial Services 
which seeks approval for additional terms in respect of the lease of the site of 239 
Preston Road, Whittle-le-Woods to the Whittle GP Surgery Practice. 
 
Decision: 
To seek approval for additional terms in respect of the lease of the above site to 
The Whittle GP Surgery Practice. 
 
Reasons for recommendations: 

1. Following agreement and approval of the initial heads of terms, a contract for 
the construction of the new medical practice building was let and construction is 
now nearing practical completion.  

Agenda Page 14 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 24 February 2022 

2. The Surgery is due for completion in March and a lease needs completing 
ahead of the Surgery handover. 

 
Other options considered and rejected: 
None. 
 

22.EC.95 Approval of Tender Evaluation Criteria for Security & Concierge Services 
 
On Behalf of Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), Councillor 
Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service 
Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director of Commercial Services 
which provides details of the procurement exercise being undertaken to bring the 
contracts for the delivery of the concierge and security services across council 
operated assets into one, including the evaluation criteria and weightings which will be 
used to award the contract. 
 
Decision: 

1. To approve the contract award procedure of an Open Tender process 
through Find a Tender procurement as compliant with the Public Contract 
Regulations. The evaluation criteria used to establish the most 
appropriate supplier and economically advantageous contract will be 15% 
Social Value, 35% cost and 50% quality.  

2. To approve the recommendation for the final contract to be awarded by 
the Executive Member (Resources) by means of an Executive Member 
Decision.  

3. To approve the extension of the existing contracts for Sector, Exclusec 
and New Concept security services until 30th September 2022. 

 
Reasons for recommendations: 

1. Under the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules approval by the Executive 
Cabinet for the contract award procedure including the evaluation criteria and 
weightings is required for procurements with a total contract value above 
£100,000. Where this is obtained approval for the subsequent contract award 
decision can be made by EMD.  

2. In order to have sufficient time to use the Find a Tender procurement process, 
due to the overall value of a combined contract, the existing contracts which 
currently expire 31st March 2022 need to be extended in order to ensure 
continuity of service until the new supplier is in place. 

 
Other options considered and rejected: 
The option to extend the current individual contracts with Sector, Exclusec and New 
Concept Security Services by further multiple years would not have complied with the 
Councils procurement rules. A waiver of CPR’s is still required for the short-term 
extension. 
 

22.EC.96 Approval to Procure Replacement Ride on Mowers 
 
On Behalf of Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), Councillor 
Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service 
Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director of Customer and Digital 
which seeks approval for the procurement of four ride on mowers for use in 
Streetscene Services as well as delegating the award of contract to the Executive 
Member for Resources. 

Agenda Page 15 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 24 February 2022 

 
Decision: 

1. To approve the contract award procedure to procure four ride-on mowers. 
Tenders will be evaluated to establish the most economically 
advantageous tender based on 75% cost and 25% quality.  

2. That the final award of contract be delegated to the Executive Member for 
Resources for approval following procurement. 

 
Reasons for recommendations: 

1. Four replacement ride-on mowers are required to ensure service delivery for 
grounds maintenance teams.  

2. Executive Cabinet approval is required for tenders over £100,000 in line with 
Council procurement rules.  

3. Joint procurement with South Ribble Council is sought to benefit from 
economies of scale. 

 
Other options considered and rejected: 
The option to extend existing lease agreements on these has been rejected to avoid 
increased maintenance costs and downtime impacting on performance. 
 

22.EC.97 Wigan Lane Sports Facility Delivery 
 
Alistair Morwood, Executive Member (Planning and Development), presented the 
confidential report of the Director of Planning and Development which seeks approval 
of the outline design, tender approach and evaluation criteria for the delivery of a new 
archery facility and associated infrastructure at Wigan Lane Playing Field. 
 
Decision: 

1. To approve the outline design for the Wigan Lane Archery Facility and 
surrounding access and landscaping.  

2. That the green initiatives taken forward in the building design are ratified.  
3. To approve the tender approach and evaluation criteria for the tender 

process, to be progressed.  
4. To delegate contract award to Exec Member of Planning and Development 

subject to planning approval.  
5. To approve termination of the grazing licence on the land to the Wigan 

Lane frontage in order to designate as car parking which will be 
incorporated into the redevelopment, constructed and managed by the 
Council. 

 
Reasons for recommendations: 
The enhancement of the Wigan Lane Playing Field is identified in the Playing Pitch 
Strategy and Open Space, Sport and Recreation Strategy Action Plan 2020 – 2025. 
S106 has been collected towards the delivery of this project for some time now. 
Stakeholders are very supportive to the project and have shown a long-term 
dedication to utilising and enhancing this site. 
 
Other options considered and rejected: 
No other options have been considered; the Wigan Lane Playing Field site is protected 
as open space provision for sport in the Local Plan and this use has been approved at 
Full Council. This report progresses that decision. 
 
 

Agenda Page 16 Agenda Item 5



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 24 February 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Chorley Council – Notice of Executive Decisions  
 

1. This document gives 28 days notice of ‘key’ and other major decisions which the Executive Cabinet and Executive Members expect to take.  The 
document is updated as required and is available to the public on the Council’s website at www.chorley.gov.uk or from the Town Hall, Market Street, 
Chorley, PR7 1DP. 

 

2. A ‘Key’ Decision is defined as: 
a) Any executive decision which is likely to result in the Council incurring significant expenditure or the making of savings where there is: 

 a change in service provision that impacts upon the service revenue budget by £100,000 or more; or 

 a contract worth £100,000 or more; or 

 a new or unprogrammed capital scheme of £100,000 or more. 
b) Any executive decision which will have a significant impact in environmental, physical, social or economic terms on communities living or working 

in two or more electoral wards.  This includes any plans or strategies which are not within the meaning of the Council’s Policy Framework set out 
in Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution. 

c) Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council’s Constitution, a ‘Key’ Decision may not be taken, unless 28 days notice 
have been given in this document; 

d) The law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though they have not been included in this document in 
accordance with General Exception and Special Urgency provisions. 

 

3. The Executive Cabinet is made up of the Executive Leader, Deputy Leader and four Executive Members with the following portfolios: 
Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service 
Reform) 

Councillor Alistair Bradley  

Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources) Councillor Peter Wilson  
Executive Member (Early Intervention) Councillor Beverley Murray 
Executive Member (Homes and Housing) Councillor Peter Gabbott  
Executive Member (Planning and Development) Councillor Alistair Morwood  
Executive Member (Customer and Streetscene Services) Councillor Adrian Lowe 

 

4.  Copies of the Council’s Constitution and agenda and minutes for all meetings of the Council may be accessed on the Council’s website: 
www.chorley.gov.uk.  If there are any queries, including objections to items being considered in private, please contact the Council on 01257 515151 
or email contact@chorley.gov.uk.  Please note representations should be received 14 days before the date the decision is due to be taken.   

 

Gary Hall, Chief Executive 
Last updated: 09 March 2022 

A
genda P

age 19
A

genda Item
 6

http://www.chorley.gov.uk/
http://www.chorley.gov.uk/
mailto:contact@chorley.gov.uk


Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key 

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

 

Future meetings of the Executive Cabinet where there is an intention to hold part of a meeting in private: 24 March 2022 
 

March 
 

Request to Join 
Cities Race to 
Zero 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 24 Mar 2022 No 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/documents/s
136747/Notice
%20of%20Moti
on%20003.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

Streetscene 
Strategy 2022-
2025 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer and 
Streetscene 
Services) 

A significant 
impact in 
environmental, 
social or 
physical terms 
in two or more 
wards 

24 Mar 2022  
 

 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

First Homes 
Interim Policy 
Statement 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

 24 Mar 2022 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

A
genda P

age 20
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Renewal of 
Lease - Coach 
House - Astley 
Hall - Cafe 
Ambio 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

24 Mar 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Accommodation 
Project Update 
and 
Procurement 
Approval 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

24 Mar 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 21
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Procure 
Replacement 
Small Panel 
Vans 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer and 
Streetscene 
Services) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

24 Mar 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8795&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Future meetings 
 

Approval to go 
out to tender for 
remedial repairs 
to Brinscall Pool 
concrete floors 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

16 Jun 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 22
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Leisure Capital 
Expenditure 
Procurement 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources), 
Councillor 
Beverley 
Murray 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

16 Jun 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Proposal of 
Rent and 
Service Costs 
for Tatton 
Gardens 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

A new or 
unprogrammed 
capital scheme 
of £100,000 or 
more 

16 Jun 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

Primrose 
Gardens Rent 
and service 
Charges 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 23
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Acquisition of 
Affordable 
Homes 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

A new or 
unprogrammed 
capital scheme 
of £100,000 or 
more 

16 Jun 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Queens Road 
Car Park 
Resurfacing - 
Contract award 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

15 Sep 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 24
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
contract award 
procedure and 
evaluation 
criteria to 
procure 
mechanical 
sweepers 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

16 Jun 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Leisure 
Contract 
Update 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

A significant 
impact in 
environmental, 
social or 
physical terms 
in two or more 
wards 

 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 25
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Executive Member Decisions 
 

Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Services Reform) 
 

Milestone 
Meadow Play 
Area, Euxton 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 March 2022 No 
 

Open Space, 
Sport & 
Recreation 
Strategy 
Summary and 
Action Plan - 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/mgIssueHist
oryHome.aspx?
IId=71337&Plan
Id=909&RPID=
7050336 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Lancashire 
Woodland 
Connect 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 August 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 26
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Cripplegate 
Lane Pond 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 November 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Alker Lane 
Bridge 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A change in 
service 
provision that 
impacts upon 
the service 
revenue budget 
by £100,000 or 
more 

November 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 27
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Alker Lane 
Development - 
Appointment of 
PM/EA/QS 
Support 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 January 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

BAE Agreement 
- Alker Lane 
Bridge 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 28
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Network Rail 
Agreement - 
Alker Lane 
Bridge 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Agreement GA 
Pet Foods - 
Alker Lane 
Bridge 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 17 Dec 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 29
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Tatton Second 
Stage Fee 
Expenditure 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

19 Nov 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Rent Relief for 
Council 
Commercial 
Tenants 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A change in 
service 
provision that 
impacts upon 
the service 
revenue budget 
by £100,000 or 
more 

January 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 30
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Choose Chorley 
Grant (Ipsum 
Group) 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Councillor 
Alistair Bradley 

 2 Sep 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

Chorley BIG 
Grant - Froogle 
Media Limited 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Councillor 
Alistair Bradley 

 5 Aug 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 31
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Chorley BIG 
Grant 
(Aesthetics 
Training Group 
Ltd) 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Councillor 
Alistair Bradley 

 2 Sep 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

Mass Tree 
Planting for 
Woodland 
Creation on 
Council Owned 
Land 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 21 May 2021 No 
 

To Follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

Clean Air 
Strategy 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A significant 
impact in 
environmental, 
social or 
physical terms 
in two or more 
wards 

May 2021 No 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s122080/
Clean%20Air%
20Strategy%20
enc.%202.pdf?
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Communities) 
 

A
genda P

age 32
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Covid Memorial 
Consultation 
summary and 
Next Steps 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 December 2021 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual.  
Paragraph 2: 
Information 
which is likely to 
reveal the 
identity of an 
individual. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

A
genda P

age 33
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Elections 
Software 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Regulatory 
Services Case 
Management 
System 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 34
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
GIS (mapping) 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Document 
Management 
for Revenues 
and Benefits 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 35
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
WiFi 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

26 Mar 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s119847/
Approval%20for
%20the%20con
tract%20award
%20procedure
%20and%20ev
aluation%20crit
eria%20for%20I
CT%20hardwar
e%20and%20s
oftware.%20enc
.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Remote 
Desktop 
Solution 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 36
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
ICT Helpdesk 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Anti-virus 
Software 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 37
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Asset 
Management 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Mobile Contract 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 38
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Accessibility 
Software 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

September 
2021 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information) 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s119847/
Approval%20for
%20the%20con
tract%20award
%20procedure
%20and%20ev
aluation%20crit
eria%20for%20I
CT%20hardwar
e%20and%20s
oftware.%20enc
.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
the Intranet 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 39
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Case 
Management 
System 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Printers 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 40
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Mobile Devices 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Review of 
CCTV 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 41
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Third Party 
Support 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Hybrid Mail 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 42
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Physical Post 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Direct Debit 
Processing 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 43
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Payment 
Schemes 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
115&MId=8036
&Ver=4 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Mobile 
Hardware 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 44
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Networking 
Hardware 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Server Estate 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 45
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Backup and DR 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Document 
Management 
Solution 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 46
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Time 
Management 
Solution 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Legal Case 
Management 
System 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 47
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Burials and 
Memorial 
Solution 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Audit Software 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 48
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Meeting Room 
Technology 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Virtual 
Mailroom 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 49
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Software for 
Regulatory 
Services 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Case 
Management 
System 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 50
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Customer 
Relationship 
Management 
(CRM) 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for the 
Procurement of 
Third Party 
Support 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=115&MId
=8804&Ver=4&
$LO$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 51
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval of 
tender 
evaluation 
criteria for 
Parking 
Enforcement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

24 Mar 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval for the 
Contract Award 
for King 
Georges 
Playing Fields 
Pavilion 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

May 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s122070/
King%20Georg
es%20Playing
%20Fields%20
Pavilion%20-
%20Proposed%
20Contract%20
Award%20Proc
eedure%20enc.
%202.pdf?$LO
$=1 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

A
genda P

age 52
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
Procurement of 
Garden Waste 
Collection 
Service Permits 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 2 Dec 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Procurement of 
Electrical 
Contractor to 
undertake 
planned and 
reactive 
maintenance 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Councillor Peter 
Wilson 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

March 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 53
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Applications for 
Hardship Relief 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 October 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Harrisons Farm 
Adlington - 
Notification of 
United Utilities 
Works under 
S159 of the 
Water Industry 
Act 1991 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval For 
Car Park 
Barrier Bengal 
Street 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 54
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Queens Road 
Car Park 
Resurfacing - 
Procurement of 
Main Contractor 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

August 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval for 
Early 
Retirement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 18 Feb 2022 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Mutual 
Agreement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Mutual 
Agreement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 September 
2021 

Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 55
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Mutual 
Agreement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 September 
2021 

Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Mutual 
Agreement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 September 
2021 

Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Health and 
Safety Service 
Review Update 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 24 Sep 2021 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information) 
 

To Follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Governance) 
 

A
genda P

age 56
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Alker Lane 
Sale/Leasing 
Approval 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer and 
Streetscene 
Services) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

8 Apr 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Croft Lodge, 
Lodge Bank, 
Brinscall - 
Fishing Lease 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Common Bank 
Lane Disposal 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 57
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Disposal of 3 
Parking Spaces 
at Farrington 
Street Car Park 
Chorley 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Land Rear of 50 
and 52 Fairview 
Drive Adlington 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 58
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Land At 
Foxhole Road 
Chorley 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 Before 3 Aug 
2021 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Land 5 
Stansted Road 
Chorley 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 Before 18 Feb 
2022 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 59
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
2, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
3, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 60
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
4, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
5, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 61
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Grant of a lease 
- Unit 3, Flat 
Iron Parade, 
Market Walk 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 Before 30 Apr 
2021 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Unit 6 Flat Iron 
Parade-
Renewal of 
Lease 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 14 May 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 62
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Amendment of 
Lease Terms - 
Unit 9a Market 
Walk 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 Before 10 Sep 
2021 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Units 20-21 
Market Walk-
Proposed 
Renewal of 
Lease to New 
Look Retailers 
Ltd 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 Before 25 Dec 
2021 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
 
 

A
genda P

age 63
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Grant of a 
Lease - 37 New 
Market Street - 
First Floor 
Above Iceland - 
Market Walk 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

98 Market 
Street Chorley - 
Grant of Lease 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 17 Dec 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 64
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Acquire 
Individual 
Homes for 
Affordable Rent 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Acquisition of 
Refugee 
Property - No 3 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

February 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s133142/
Council%20Rep
ort%20-
%20Refugee%
20Resettlement
%20Programm
e.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 65
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Acquisition of 
Refugee 
Property - No 4 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

February 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s133142/
Council%20Rep
ort%20-
%20Refugee%
20Resettlement
%20Programm
e.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Acquisition of 
Refugee 
Property - No 5 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

February 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s133142/
Council%20Rep
ort%20-
%20Refugee%
20Resettlement
%20Programm
e.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 66
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Acquisition of 
Refugee 
Property - No 6 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

February 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s133142/
Council%20Rep
ort%20-
%20Refugee%
20Resettlement
%20Programm
e.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Acquisition of 
Refugee 
Property - No 7 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

February 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s133142/
Council%20Rep
ort%20-
%20Refugee%
20Resettlement
%20Programm
e.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 67
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Acquisition of 
Refugee 
Property - No 8 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

February 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s133142/
Council%20Rep
ort%20-
%20Refugee%
20Resettlement
%20Programm
e.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Acquisition of 
Refugee 
Property - No 9 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

February 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s133142/
Council%20Rep
ort%20-
%20Refugee%
20Resettlement
%20Programm
e.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 68
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Acquisition of 
Refugee 
Property - No 
10 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

February 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s133142/
Council%20Rep
ort%20-
%20Refugee%
20Resettlement
%20Programm
e.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Buzz Bingo 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 28 Aug 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 69
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 2 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 3 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 70
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 4 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services), 
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 5 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 9 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 19 Nov 2021  
 

 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 71
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 14 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 15 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 Before 4 Mar 
2022 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 72
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 20 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 27 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 73
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Grant of a 
Lease - Cafe - 
Primrose 
Gardens 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 Before 27 Aug 
2021 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Grant of a 
Lease - 
Primrose 
Gardens 
Hairdressing 
Salon 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 Before 31 Oct 
2021 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 74
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Exclusec 
Security 
Contract for 
Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Park 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

February 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

UPDATE - 
Kiosk/Cafe 
Coronation 
Recreation 
Ground Chorley 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 4 Sep 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 75
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Letting 
Arrangements - 
Hair Salon - 
Primrose 
Gardens 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Lease of Cafe 
Coach House 
Astley Park 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

September 
2020 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 76
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Proposed 
Wayleave 
Agreement: 
Harrisons Farm, 
Old School 
Lane, Adlington 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 September 
2020 

Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Shop Front 
Grant 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 December 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

Vacant Property 
and Shop Front 
Grants - 
Programme 
Evaluation - 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/mgIssueHist
oryHome.aspx?
IId=44900 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 77
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Aspect 
Mortgages - 
Chorley BIG 
Grant 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Councillor Peter 
Wilson 

 11 Mar 2022 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

Whittle Surgery 
HoT's 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

November 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

A
genda P

age 78
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Request to 
release 
restrictive 
covenant 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Covid 19 
Measures 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 August 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Approve an 
application for 
ERVS 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 16 Jul 2021 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 79
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Town Hall 
Boiler 
Replacement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 June 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Technology 
enhancements 
in Committee 
Room 1, Town 
H all 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 November 2021 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Governance) 
 

A
genda P

age 80
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Executive Member (Early Intervention) 
 

Investment and 
improvements 
at Duxbury Park 
Community 
Facilities 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

A new or 
unprogrammed 
capital scheme 
of £100,000 or 
more 

July 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Early 
Intervention and 
Support) 
 

Approval for the 
scope of 
development 
projects at 
Leisure Centres 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2021  
 

To Follow 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Leisure 
Management - 
Wholly Owned 
Company 
Implementation 
- Fee's, charges 
and 
concessions 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 Before 30 Apr 
2021 

No 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/documents/g
8128/Public%2
0reports%20pa
ck%2013th-Apr-
2021%2018.30
%20Council.pdf
?T=10 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 81
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Lancashire 
Domestic 
Abuse Services 
- Chorley 
Contribution 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 March 2021 No 
 

To Follow 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Communities) 
 

Volunteering 
Policy 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 9 Dec 2021 No 
 

Yes 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Communities) 
 

Beaconsfield 
Terrace 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 13 May 2021 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Communities) 
 

Stray Dog 
Collection 
Service - Fees 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 10 Jun 2021 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Communities) 
 

Clean Air 
Strategy 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 20 Dec 2021 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/mgIssueHist
oryHome.aspx?
IId=83895&Opt
=0 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Communities) 
 

Appointment of 
Proper Officer 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 28 Feb 2022 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Communities) 
 

A
genda P

age 82
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Neighbourhood 
Priorities 
Delivery 
2022/23 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 11 Mar 2022 No 
 

Neighbourhood 
Area Meeting 
agendas - 
Jan/Feb 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Communities) 
 

A
genda P

age 83
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Executive Member (Customer and Streetscene Services) 
 

Recycling 
Strategy 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer and 
Streetscene 
Services) 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer and 
Streetscene 
Services) 

 July 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Chorley Town 
Centre 
Recycling Trial 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer and 
Streetscene 
Services) 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer and 
Streetscene 
Services) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 11 Feb 2022 No 
 

http://mod/ieList
Documents.asp
x?CId=1015&MI
D=8752 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 84
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Executive Member (Homes and Housing) 
 

Tatton Gardens 
Policies 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

 14 Oct 2021 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Houses in 
Multiple 
Occupation 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

 29 Jul 2021 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

Low Cost Home 
Ownership 
Scheme 
Options 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

A significant 
impact in 
environmental, 
social or 
physical terms 
in two or more 
wards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24 Mar 2022 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

A
genda P

age 85
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Executive Member (Planning and Development) 
 

King George V 
Playing Fields 
Pavilion - 
Tender 
Evaluation 
Social Value 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

 November 2021 No 
 

http://mod/docu
ments/s122070/
King%20Georg
es%20Playing
%20Fields%20
Pavilion%20-
%20Proposed%
20Contract%20
Award%20Proc
eedure%20enc.
%202.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

A
genda P

age 86
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Appointment of 
Consultants to 
undertake a 
Gypsy and 
Traveller and 
Travelling 
Showpeople 
Accommodation 
Needs 
Assessment for 
the Central 
Lancashire 
Authorities and 
Support in 
Development of 
Policies 
Relating to this 
for the Local 
Plan 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

 14 Mar 2022 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

A
genda P

age 87
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Appointment of 
Consultants to 
prepare an 
Infrastructure 
Development 
Plan for the 
Central 
Lancashire 
Local Plan and 
provide 
additional 
viability support 
through 
development of 
a Topic Paper 
and Policies for 
the Local Plan 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

 Before 14 Mar 
2022 

No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

Appointment of 
Consultants to 
assist in 
progressing 
work on the 
Central 
Lancashire 
Land Use Study 
and 
development of 
policies and a 
topic paper for 
the Local Plan 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

 1 Apr 2022  
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

A
genda P

age 88
A

genda Item
 6



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Appointment of 
Consultants to 
provide support 
in the 
development of 
policies relating 
to sustainable 
water 
management 
and associated 
topic paper for 
the Local Plan 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

 April 2022 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

Appointment of 
Consultants 
JBA to 
undertake a 
Level 2 
Strategic Flood 
Risk 
Assessment for 
the Local Plan 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

Executive 
Member 
(Planning and 
Development) 

 April 2022 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Planning and 
Development) 
 

A
genda P

age 89
A

genda Item
 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1 
 

Lancashire County Council 
 
Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the Meeting Held on Tuesday 1 February 2022 at 10.30 am in 
Committee Room 'A' - The Tudor Room, County Hall, Preston 
 
 
Present: 

County Councillor David Westley (Chair) 
 

County Councillors 
 

C Haythornthwaite 
N Khan 
S Jones 
E Lewis 
 

J Oakes 
E Pope 
S Rigby 
 

Co-opted members 
 

Councillor David Howarth, (South Ribble Borough Council) 
Councillor Jennifer Mein, (Preston City Council) 
Councillor Viv Willder, (Fylde Borough Council) 

 
County Councillor Dr Erica Lewis replaced County Councillor Kim Snape and 
County Councillor Nweeda Khan replaced County Councillor Mohammed Iqbal 
MBE for this meeting only. 
 
1.   Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Alex Hilton. 
 
County Councillor Joan Burrows, County Councillor Lizzi Collinge,  
County Councillor Stuart C Morris, County Councillor Lian Pate,  
Councillor Barbara Ashworth, Councillor Saeed Chaudhary, Councillor Gina 
Dowding, Councillor Sue Gregson, Councillor Jenny Molineux, and  
Councillor Julie Robinson attended virtually on Microsoft Teams. 
 
2.   Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

 
County Councillor Mein declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 5, as a 
previous board member of Community Gateway and was involved in  
decision-making. 
 
County Councillor Lewis declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 5, as a 
district councillor for the John O'Gaunt ward in Lancaster where an extra-care 
scheme was being built and under employment of Cumbria University, whose 
land was being built on. 
 

Agenda Page 91 Agenda Item 7



 
2 

 

3.   Minutes of the Meetings Held on 2 and 16 November 2021 
 

Resolved: That the minutes from the meetings held on 2 and 16 November were 
confirmed as an accurate record. 
 
4.   Enhanced Network Model of Acute Stroke Care and Rehabilitation in 

Lancashire and South Cumbria 
 

Aaron Cummins, Senior Responsible Officer for the stroke programme and  
Chief Executive of Morecambe Bay Hospitals, Cath Curley, Clinical Director of 
the Integrated Stroke and Neuro Delivery Network (ISNDN) and  
Stroke Consultant Nurse, Elaine Day, Manager of the Lancashire and South 
Cumbria ISNDN, Anthony Gardner, Director of Planning and Performance, 
Hayley Michell, Interim Stroke Programme Director, Sharon Walkden,  
Project Manager, Stroke Programme, and Phil Woodford, Chair of the Patient 
and Carer Stroke and Neuro Assurance Group attended to present the report and 
answer queries from the committee.  
 
Comments and queries from the committee were as follows: 
 

 In response to member's concerns about lessons learned it was noted that 

the model was adopted by Manchester and London a few years ago and 

national data from the Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (SSNAP) 

for those areas helped to identify key outcomes.  A key outcome at 

specialist centres was that staff became experts as they saw more 

patients and had more experience with procedures. The Lancashire stroke 

team learnt that on those sites where there was not a front-door team, 

there was a requirement to have an established team within the hospital to 

take calls from the ambulance, A&E, or from the wards to attend to the 

patient straight away, diagnose the urgency and identify next steps. Other 

lessons learnt from the Manchester and London models was a 

requirement to up-resource community teams.  

 To ensure the 24/7 service, staff were recruited as part of a three-year 

investment plan and workforce plan. The local NHS worked with the local 

universities and set up different courses along the pathway. The stroke 

centres have been considered good places to work, therefore recruitment 

was successful, new unblended roles were introduced, and services were 

future proofed. Succession plans were put in place for the staff already in 

place and this supported retainment. Digital services also supported staff 

to do their jobs more efficiently, they did not need to be onsite to access 

test results.        

 The team visited individual hospitals for thoughts and feelings of the staff 

and to gather if there was any resistance to change. This was followed up 

with regular workshops, where staff contributed to the case for change, so 

that there would be no surprises with the new model of care.  

Agenda Page 92 Agenda Item 7



 
3 

 

 It was clarified that the hospitals would not lose their acute stroke units, 

but would be strengthened, with staff supported in their training and 

development.  

 It was confirmed that there had not been any involvement with trade 

unions or professional bodies, as it had been perceived from staff that 

there was no need. However, they were aware of a forum which they could 

attend. Further information on trade union and professional body 

engagement could be provided to the committee. 

 It was noted that the local NHS had a strong relationship with UCLAN, 

courses were also available in Manchester and Liverpool, and it was 

expected that where students train, they would stay to work close-by. 

There was a phased approach across the region due to the number of 

staff required, therefore staff were upskilled on each acute site and 

apprentices were recruited. Funding was secured for a regional role which 

supported speech and language therapy training and there was 

collaborative work done with Edge Hill around carers assessments.  

 In terms of concerns regarding travel times in particular from the north 

Lancashire area, a strengthened front-door allowed more efficient 

assessment before suitable patients would be transferred to Royal Preston 

Hospital. Where there were traffic issues, the air ambulance was used. It 

was noted from the patient perspective, that they were happy to attend the 

general hospital to be stabilised and then transferred to the acute stroke 

centre to receive specialist treatment. The team continued to work closely 

with the North West Ambulance Service (NWAS) on modelling travel 

times. It was explained that when the business case was considered by 

the Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups, they asked for 

more work to be done with NWAS regarding travel times and access 

points which included scenario planning using technical mapping software.  

 It was confirmed that Blackpool Victoria Hospital would remain an acute 

stroke centre, but Royal Preston Hospital would be the main hub for 

Thrombectomy.  

 Data from the Equality Impact Assessment relating to main risk factors for 

stroke and equality protected groups in particular ethnicity and gender 

could be shared with the committee. On preventative measures, it was 

noted that there had been a number of community projects carried out this 

year including GP practices supporting people to self-monitor. One of the 

benefits of the proposed model was to ensure that there was no variation 

in access to services and treatments. The Patient Carer Assurance Group 

was currently looking at methods to increase their diversity to be 

representative of different communities. 

 The New Hospitals Programme was seen as an opportunity to receive 

investment for improvement but was still at an early stage of development. 

There was some assurance provided that clinical models that were 

changed based on best practice and national guidelines, would not be 

Agenda Page 93 Agenda Item 7



 
4 

 

changed and the stroke pathway was set, and that pathway would be 

included in any development through the programme if successful. 

 
The Chair thanked members of the local NHS for the presentation and 
information provided. In considering whether the proposal represented a 
substantial variation, there was a consensus from the committee that on balance 
it did not meet any of the characteristics likely to increase defining the proposal 
as substantial. However, it was felt that further assurances were required in 
relation to travel times, engagement with trade unions and professional bodies 
and recruitment and training. It was suggested that the Health Scrutiny Steering 
Group be asked to seek assurances on these matters at its next scheduled 
meeting on 9 February 2022. 
 
Actions: 

 The local NHS to provide members with Equality Impact Assessment data 

relating to the equality protected groups.  

 
Resolved: That;  
 

i. The Enhanced Network Model of Acute Stroke Care and Rehabilitation in 

Lancashire and South Cumbria proposal did not represent a substantial 

variation; and  

ii. The following matters be taken forward by the Health Scrutiny Steering 

Group at its meeting scheduled on 9 February 2022: 

a. Travel times modelling and contingency plans for the north 

Lancashire area; 

b. Engagement activity with trade unions and professional bodies; and 

c. Recruitment and training. 

 
5.   Update on Housing with Care and Support Strategy 

 
The Chair welcomed Sarah McCarthy, Policy, Information and Commissioning 
Senior Manager (Age Well), Dawn Astin, Service Manager (Housing Specialist 
PLOT), and Mike Alsop, Policy, Information and Commissioning Senior Manager 
(Age Well) from Lancashire County Council who presented an update about 
progress on the implementation of the Housing with Care and Support Strategy 
2018-2025, which set out the county council's vision for extra care housing for 
older people and apartment developments for working age adults with disabilities. 
Officers were joined by Diane Emmison, Supported Housing Manager from the 
Regenda Group, Katie Stanley, Scheme Manager at Lighthouse View in 
Fleetwood, and tenants. 
 
Comments and queries from the committee were as follows: 
 

 It was clarified that for supported living schemes, different housing benefit 

opportunities covered the costs of rent for tenants which was managed by 

the district councils, although officers were aware of residents that worked 

and volunteered. The package of support was met by Lancashire County 

Agenda Page 94 Agenda Item 7



 
5 

 

Council, each individual was financially assessed, and contributions were 

made depending on their income. On average, most apartment schemes 

were £200-250 per week for rent, which was consistent with specialist 

accommodation, however, it was noted that this type of accommodation 

was at a higher level of rent than other sectors. Officers were in 

conversation with providers regarding the national issue of the rising cost 

of development and ensured that new schemes were affordable.   

 Supported living schemes on average were 45-50 square feet, this was 

deemed to be more spacious and larger than previous options. Extra care 

schemes were also larger, some were two bedrooms apartments. Upkeep 

of the apartments were quality monitored and there was a ten year forward 

plan for replacements to maintain service standards. 

 In terms of service user allocation into extra care schemes, there were 

three priority groups: 

1. Who otherwise would have been in residential care; 

2. Eligible for care in terms of the Care Act, with either a 

commissioned care package or they opted for informal care; and 

3. Did not have an eligible need under the Care Act but would benefit 

from living in an extra care environment. 

On the referral pathway, the decision was determined by a panel which 
consisted of the landlord, care provider, and social care representatives. 
Only need was considered, direct payments and funding were not taken 
into account. There was a waiting list, and this was referred to when there 
was a vacancy. Not all settings are suitable for individuals and in some 
circumstances, schemes were developed to meet needs. 

 It was explained that once all existing schemes had been developed and 

established, the officers would then look at demand with the district 

councils to see what next steps were needed for each district.  

 It was identified that there was a shortage of accessible accommodation, 

therefore officers were working with Adult Social Care and district councils 

to undertake a needs assessment.  

 There was no intention to retire anymore social care settings, although 

some residents may have been move into the schemes if it was 

considered to be more suitable for their needs. Lancashire County Council 

officers continued to work closely with officers from the district councils 

and discussed opportunities for land, including in the county council's 

assets.  

 On the provision of social care, there was a tender for an on-site provider, 

to provide 24/7 staff presence and emergency response. Tenants also had 

their own care package and had the option to choose the on-site provider 

or opt for a different provider. Currently, there were over 50 providers on 

an approved providers list. 

 It was anticipated that people participating in the Good Neighbour Scheme 

did not require social care. 

 On whether the change in provision would impact on workforce 

considerations, it was noted that it would not mitigate the need for staff as 

Agenda Page 95 Agenda Item 7



 
6 

 

people's social care needs varied and would therefore need to be met. 

There were some efficiencies with apartment and larger scale schemes as 

less background and night staff were needed to provide cover. 

 
Members thanked officers for their presentation. 
 
Resolved: That; 
 

i. The report be noted; and 

ii. A further update on Housing with Care and Support Strategy be presented 

to the Health Scrutiny Committee in 18 months to review progress. 

 
6.   Report of the Health Scrutiny Committee Steering Group 

 
The committee considered a report containing an overview of matters presented 
and considered by the Health Scrutiny Steering Group at its meetings held on  
10 November, 1 December 2021, and 5 January 2022. No queries were raised by 
the committee. 
 
Resolved: That the report of the Health Scrutiny Steering Group as presented, 
be received. 
 
7.   Work Programme 2021/22 

 
The committee considered a report which provided information on the work 
programme for the Health Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The topics included in the work programme were identified at the work planning 
workshop held on 29 June 2021. 
 
Resolved: That, the Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22 be 
noted. 
 
8.   Urgent Business 

 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
9.   Date of Next Meeting 

 
It was noted the next meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee was scheduled to 
be held on 22 March 2022 at 10:30am in County Hall, Preston. 
 
 L Sales 

Director of Corporate Services 
  
County Hall 
Preston 

 

 

Agenda Page 96 Agenda Item 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22 

The Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme details the planned activity to be undertaken over the forthcoming municipal year 

through scheduled committee meetings, task group, events and through use of the 'rapporteur' model. 

 

The items on the work programme are determined by the committee following the work programming session carried out by the 

steering group at the start of the municipal year in line with the Overview and Scrutiny Committees' Terms of Reference detailed in 

the county council's Constitution. This includes provision for the rights of county councillors to ask for any matter to be considered by 

the committee or to call-in decisions. 

 

Coordination of the work programme activity is undertaken by the chair and deputy chair of all of the scrutiny committees to avoid 

potential duplication.  

 

In addition to the terms of reference outlined in the Constitution (Part 2 Article 5) for all Overview and Scrutiny Committees, the  

Health Scrutiny Committee will: 

 

 Scrutinise matters relating to health and adult social care delivered by the authority, the National Health Service and other 
relevant partners. 

 

 Review any matter relating to the planning, provision, and operation of the health service in the area, to invite interested parties 
to comment on the matter and take account of relevant information available, particularly that provided by the local healthwatch. 
 

 In the case of contested NHS proposals for substantial service changes, take steps to reach agreement with the NHS body. 
 

 In the case of contested NHS proposals for substantial service changes where agreement cannot be reached with the NHS, 
refer the matter to the relevant secretary of state.  

 

 Refer to the relevant secretary of state any NHS proposal which the committee feels has been the subject of inadequate 
consultation.    

 

 Scrutinise the social care services provided or commissioned by NHS bodies exercising local authority functions under the 
Health and Social Care Act 2012. 

 

A
genda P

age 97
A

genda Item
 7

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=914&MId=2916&Ver=4&info=1&bcr=1


Appendix 'A' 
 

 

 Request that the Internal Scrutiny Committee establish as necessary, joint working arrangements with district councils and 
other neighbouring authorities.  
 

 Draw up a forward programme of health scrutiny in consultation with other local authorities, NHS partners, the local 
healthwatch, and other key stakeholders. 
 

 Acknowledge within 20 working days to referrals on relevant matters from the local healthwatch or local healthwatch contractor, 
and to keep the referrer informed of any action taken in relation to the matter. 

 

 Require the chief executives of local NHS bodies to attend before the committee to answer questions, and to invite the chairs 
and non-executive directors of local NHS bodies to appear before the committee to give evidence.  

 

 Invite any officer of any NHS body to attend before the committee to answer questions or give evidence. 
 

 Recommend Full Council to co-opt on to the committee persons with appropriate expertise in relevant health matters, without 
voting rights. 

 

 Establish and make arrangements for a Health Steering Group, the main purpose of which to be to manage the workload of 
the full committee more effectively in the light of the increasing number of changes to health services.   
 

The work programme will be submitted to and agreed by the Health Scrutiny Committee at each meeting and will be published with 

each agenda. 

A
genda P

age 98
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

The dates are indicative of when the Health Scrutiny Committee will review the item, however, they may need to be rescheduled and 

new items added as required. 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

 

Topic Scrutiny Purpose 
(objectives, evidence, initial outcomes) 

Lead Officers/organisations Proposed 
Date(s) 

Lancashire & South 
Cumbria Pathology 
Collaboration 

Seek assurances from the patient's perspective, 
impact on workforce; service provision in west 
Lancashire. 

LSCFT 

14 September 
2021 

Community Mental 
Health Transformation 
programme 

Early engagement on the programme - 
background/case for change; how this will affect 
methods of service delivery; changes to 
accessibility and pathways including urgent; 
which partners involved, next steps and 
timescales 

LSCFT 

Increasing vaccination 
uptake and addressing 
inequalities 

Joint report from the NHS, the council for 
voluntary services, and the borough councils 
delivering the local vaccination programme. 

LCC Public Health, Lancashire & South 
Cumbria ICS, CVS and borough councils 

2 November 2021 
 

Workforce GP 
shortage 

Progress made in relation to recommendations 
of the 2017 scrutiny inquiry report 

NHS England North West and Lancashire & 
South Cumbria ICS 

14 December 
2021 

(cancelled) 

Housing with Care and 
Support Strategy 

Progress on the implementation of the strategy LCC Adult Services 

1 February 2022 
Lancashire & South 
Cumbria - Enhanced 
Acute Stroke Services 
programme 

Consider the business case for the 
reconfiguration of stroke services in the area. 

Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated 
Stroke and Neurorehabilitation Delivery 
Network (ISNDN) 

Disabled facilities 
Grants - TBC 

Report on the differing allocations of Disabled 
Facilities Grants to district councils in 
Lancashire with a focus on discretionary grants 

LCC Adult Social Care 

22 March 2022 
 

New Hospitals 
Programme 

Update on options Rebecca Malin and Jerry Hawker, New 
Hospitals Programme 

Shaping Care 
Together - TBC 

Update on the programme TBC 

A
genda P

age 99
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

 
 
 
Other topics to be moved on to the work programme at the appropriate time: 
 

 Update on the activities of the County Council's Champion for Mental Health (CC S Morris Spring 2022 tbc) 

 Lancashire and South Cumbria Pathology Collaboration (September 2022) 

 Community Mental Health Transformation programme (tbc) 

 Early intervention and social prescribing - Review of development and effectiveness – (tbc)  

A
genda P

age 100
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Health Scrutiny Steering Group Work Programme 

 

Topic Scrutiny Purpose 
(objectives, evidence, initial outcomes) 

Lead Officers/partners Proposed 
Date(s) 

Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Stroke 
Services briefing 
 

Update on Acute Stroke Centres (previously 
referred to as Hyper Acute Stroke Services) 
 

Jack Smith, Elaine Day, NHS England and 
Improvement 
 

22 September 
2021 

New Hospitals 
programme briefing 
 

Update on the programme 
 

Jerry Hawker and Rebecca Malin, New 
Hospitals Programme 

Substantial variation 
protocol for Lancashire 
 

Consider the implementation of a written 
protocol for Lancashire 

Gary Halsall, LCC 

Initial Response Service 
 

Report on the newly established service by 
Lancashire and South Cumbria NHS 
Foundation Trust 

LSCFT 

13 October 2021 
Clatterbridge Cancer 
Centre 
 

Blood cancer proposal Jackie Moran, NHS West Lancashire 
Clinical Commissioning Group 

Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Pathology 
Collaboration 

Concerns raised by pathologists Gary Halsall, LCC 

Outbreak management 
and infection control – 
adult social care 
 

Report on the key issues Lisa Slack, Head of Service Quality, 
Contracts and Safeguarding Adults Service, 
LCC 

10 November 
2021 

 
NHS 111 
 

Findings and evaluation of the new NHS 111 
First programme (resolution from committee's 
meeting held on 15 September 2020) 

Jackie Bell, Head of NHS 111 Service, 
NWAS 

NHS winter planning Assurance on measures and systems in place 
for the forthcoming winter. 

Seamus McGirr and David Bonson, 
Lancashire and South Cumbria ICS 

  

A
genda P

age 101
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Continuing Healthcare 
Assessments 

Focus on county council resources, 
understanding the delay to finalising policies, 
and the effect on wider health outcomes 

Ian Crabtree and Saad Khan, LCC 

1 December 2021 Workforce resilience, 
wellbeing, sufficiency – 
Adult Social Care 
 

Report on the key issues Louise Taylor, Tony Pounder, LCC Adult 
Social Care 

Healthwatch Lancashire Identifying collaborative ways of working David Blacklock, People First/Health 
Lancashire 
 

5 January 2022 
 Workforce GP shortage Progress made in relation to recommendations 

of the 2017 scrutiny inquiry report 
NHS England North West and Lancashire 
and South Cumbria ICS 

New Hospitals 
Programme 

Update on shortlisting options - first phase Rebecca Malin and Jerry Hawker, New 
Hospitals programme 

UHMBT – Urology and 
Trauma and 
Orthopaedic Services 

Determine how to monitor improvements University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and  
Dr David Levy, Chair of NHSE/I System 
Improvement Board 

9 February 2022 
 

Shaping Care Together 
- TBC 

Update on the programme TBC 

Fylde Coast Integrated 
Care Contract - TBC 
 

Review of contract and recent CQC rating of 
Blackpool Hospital's Urgent and Emergency 
Care provision 

TBC 

Quality Surveillance 
Group 

Introduction and identifying collaborative ways 
of working 

Jackie Hanson and Jane Scattergood, NHS 
England & NHS Improvement North West 
Region 

NHS Trust Quality 
Accounts 

Review of NHS Trust Quality Accounts – 
formulating comments 

Healthwatch Lancashire 

10 March 2022 
 

Continuing Healthcare 
Assessments - TBC 

Update on progress Ian Crabtree, Saad Kafrika, LCC and Talib 
Yaseen, Lancashire and South Cumbria ICS 

Health inequalities – 
people with learning 
disabilities - TBC 

Report on the key issues LCC Learning disabilities, autism and 
mental health 

A
genda P

age 102
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Annual health checks 
and LeDeR programme 
- TBC 
 

Written report and action plan on performance 
against the trajectory for discharge rates, 
Annual Health Checks (AHC) and Learning 
Disabilities Mortality Reviews (LeDeR) targets 
 

Lancashire and Midlands Commissioning 
Support Unit/Lancashire and South Cumbria 
ICS 

Intermediate Care 
Services - TBC 

Report on the key issues LCC and Lancashire & South Cumbria ICS 

NHS Trust Quality 
Accounts 

Review of NHS Trust Quality Accounts – 
formulating comments 

Healthwatch Lancashire 

6 April 2022 
 

Preventative healthcare 
– healthy weight and 
obesity; NHS Health 
Checks (Healthy Hearts) 
Emotional and Mental 
Health – substance 
misuse and alcohol 
services - TBC 
 

Overarching report identifying the key issues. 
 

LCC Public Health 
 

   4 May 2022 
 

 
Other topics to be scheduled: 
 

 Health Education England – workforce risks, recruitment and training (see 10 Nov 21 Steering Group notes) 

 High Intensity User Programme  

 Lancashire and South Cumbria Enhanced Acute Stroke Services – update to steering group between March and May 2022 

 Liberty Protection Safeguards – review of preparations before go live (April/October 2022?) 

 Health and Care Bill 2021 – implications for health scrutiny 

 NHS Workforce and Shortage of GPs (December 2022 – see 1 December 2021 notes) 

 Vascular Service improvement and new model of care and Head and Neck programme 

 Healthwatch reports: 
o COVID recovery and restoration - primary and elective care 
o Primary care - face to face engagement 
o Dental service shortage 
o Day Care Service improvement (LCC) 

A
genda P

age 103
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

o Community Diagnostic hubs 

 Building and enduring health protection function beyond COVID – initial report on plans from LCC Public Health 

 
 
Rapporteur activity: 
 

 CC D Westley - Ian Barber, Lancashire Armed Forces Covenant Hub, ex-service personnel programme of engagement with 
GPs and health services 

 
Briefing notes and bite size briefings to be requested: 
 

 January 2022 - CQC Assurance of local authority Adult Social Care (CQC report to be presented to committee) – briefing 
note to steering group and bite size briefing for all members? 

 Health and Care Bill – opportunities for population health – bite size briefing 

A
genda P

age 104
A

genda Item
 7



 
 

 

 

Sustainable Public Transport Second Monitoring Report 
 

Is this report confidential? No  
 

 

Is this decision key? No 

 

Savings or expenditure amounting to 
greater than £100,000 

Significant impact on 2 or more council 
wards 

 

 

Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To provide the first update of the work undertaken to deliver the recommendations of the 

Sustainable Public Transport Task Group.  
 
Recommendations to Scrutiny Committee (change committee name if not applicable) 
 
2. That the report is noted in particular the updates to recommendations  

 
3. The Committee endorse the proposed Cycling Project (paragraph 10) as an appropriate 

way to develop the cycling offer in the borough which supersedes the original 
recommendation to develop a cycling task group.  

 
Other options considered and rejected 
 
4. Not applicable. 
 
Corporate priorities 
 
5. The report relates to the following corporate priorities: (please bold all those applicable): 
 

Involving residents in improving their 

local area and equality of access for all 

A strong local economy 

Clean, safe, and healthy communities An ambitious council that does more to 

meet the needs of residents and the local 

area 

 

Report of Meeting Date 

 

Director of Planning and 

Development  

 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

Thursday, 17 March 
2022 

Agenda Page 105 Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

 

 
Background to the report 
 

5. The final report of the Task Group for Sustainable Public Transport was presented to 

Executive Cabinet in March 2021 and it was agreed that these recommendations be 

accepted. 

 
Recommendations and Progress to Date  

6. The recommendations focussed on the objectives the task group were asked to 

investigate which comprised of: 

 The difficulty the council has enforcing on public transport particularly bus and train 

 To examine all public transport routes and any changes required due to demographic 

needs 

 To tackle social isolation (public transport) in all areas of the borough 

 The opportunities for sustainable funding for buses 

 To engage with different stakeholders to understand what steps they are taking to 

provide sustainable public transport and understand how the council can help them. 

 

7. The 21 recommendations made by the task group were presented to Executive 

Cabinet on 17th June 2021 and these were endorsed for action.  

 

8. The table 1 below sets out the 21 recommendations, with the second column 

providing a little more detail as to the actions required to deliver the recommendation 

and the third column providing the latest update on progress.  

 

9. There is a brief update on progress of all actions below however there are a couple 

which are more advanced and worthy of more detailed update. 

 

Cycling  

10. The task group made a recommendation to ‘establish a cycle task group’ to look at 

cycle opportunities, and cycle routes in the borough. It is proposed that this is action 

replaced with a ‘cycling project’ which comprises of measures intended to achieve a 

number of key objectives;  

 

a) Engage with our communities to develop a wider understanding of cycling needs in 

the borough 

b) Use social media promote and raise awareness about cycling and the available 

resources in the Borough  

c) Engage with Lancashire County Council to better understand the plans for future 

provision of cycling related infrastructure in the Borough  

d) Engage our partners to develop an understanding of existing provision for cyclists for 

bike training, maintenance, and access to free equipment/security marking.  

e) Develop policies in the new Local Plan to promote and enable cycling  

 

 

Agenda Page 106 Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

11.  The specific actions proposed for the Cycling Project are listed in the table below 

and if agreed, progress will be reported back to members in the future monitoring 

report and also to the Climate Change Working Group.  

 

 Action  Lead Outcome  

1 Use of comms and social media platforms such 
as Facebook, twitter etc to promote cycling in 
the borough including raising awareness of 
changes to the Highway Code and also  
promotion of cycling as part of the refreshed 
Check out Chorley tourism campaign 

Comms/Spatial 
planning  

A number of social 
media posts  
 

2 Online consultation of cycle users in the 
Borough 

Spatial 
planning/Comms 

Citizenspace survey 
undertaken late Spring 
and survey findings to be 
reported back to 
members inform future 
cycle priorities and 
actions 

3 Explore provision for cycle parking in the 
Borough focussing on the Town Centre and 
service centres across the borough 

Spatial Planning  Report with 
recommendations 
including locations, 
costs, and next steps to 
be presented to 
members  

4 Engage with Lancashire County Council to 
investigate plans for cycle infrastructure in 
Chorley  

Spatial Planning Present findings to 
members as to plans 
/costs and any 
opportunities for the 
Council to enable 
scheme delivery. 

5. Engage partners ( statutory/voluntary sector) to 
find out what the offer is for Chorley 
residents/cyclists for cycle training, bike 
maintenance courses (particularly targeted at 
vulnerable cyclists, excluded or minority groups 
) and any free or low cost equipment 
opportunities (for example bike lights, helmets 
etc) 
 

Spatial Planning Identify what provision 
exists and ways to 
promote these and /or 
gaps or opportunities 
which would encourage 
higher volumes of cycling 
in the borough.  

 

12. The table below includes the update for all 23 recommendations. 5 are completed, 10 
are started and in progress, 3 have changed or are no longer appropriate to take 
forward.  

 

 

 

Agenda Page 107 Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

Table of Recommendations and Actions  

No Recommendation      Action Lead Latest Update /Notes  

1 Chorley Council to 

proactively lobby and 

engage with Lancashire 

County Council to 

encourage a greater role on 

bus route tendering, service 

enhancement and 

communication between all 

parties. 

Engagement with 

LCC on behalf of 

the Chair 

requesting 

engagement  

Service Lead 

Spatial Planning 

In progress  

Andrew Varley, Public Transport 

Manager has provided details of 

the Bus improvement plan on 

LCC website are proposing an 

Enhancement partnership to 

start 1st April 2022 which will 

deliver transparency in 

performance of bus services.  

2 Chorley Council to lobby 

Ministers and the 

government in cooperation 

with our Member of 

Parliament to raise 

regulation of the buses to 

obtain local delegated 

powers. 

 

Letter to be sent 

to Rt Hon Grant 

Shapps MP 

Secretary of State 

for Transport on 

behalf of the Chair 

cooperation with 

RT Hon Sir 

Lindsay Hoyle MP 

Speaker of the 

House of 

Commons 

Service Lead 

Spatial Planning 

 

 

Action no longer appropriate  

Response from LCC advising 

given the implementation of the 

Bus Enhancement Partnership 

franchising/deregulation not 

appropriate /applicable to 

Lancashire. 

3 Spatial Planning to invite 

Lancashire County Council 

to participate in a Member 

Learning session on the 

Central Lancashire 

Highways and Transport 

Masterplan draft proposals 

Email to LCC 

transport planning 

team inviting 

participation in a 

Member Learning 

Session  

Service Lead 

Spatial Planning  

 

In progress  

Marcus Hudson, Transport 

Planning Manager confirmed 

2/3/2022 willing to participate  

 

4 Routine consultation with 

Northern Rail and 

Lancashire County Council 

be requested with Chorley 

Council over changes or 

reductions in rail service.  

 

Email to be sent to 

Owain Roberts, 

Regional 

Stakeholder 

Manager, 

Northern Trains 

requesting 

engagement with 

Chorley Council 

(i.e. districts) and 

not just upper tier 

in consultations 

Service Lead 

Spatial Planning 

 

 

 

 

 

Complete. Chorley Council now 

added to Northern Rail 

Consultation database.  

Recent response submitted 

regarding timetable proposals  

Agenda Page 108 Agenda Item 9



 
 

regarding train 

service changes. 

Comms to 

publicise 

consultations and 

changes on social 

media to 

encourage public 

engagement and 

ensure local users 

aware of changes  

 

Shared Service 

Lead 

Communications 

and Visitor 

Economy  

5 To publicise all the railway 

stations through 

communications including 

“Check out Chorley” and its 

immediate area to get more 

people into the borough for 

social and economic 

activities and to use the 

train service 

Use of social 

media and other 

channels to 

promote rail use. 

Shared Service 

Lead  

 Communications 

and Visitor 

Economy 

Complete (business as usual) 

The Council have been 

publicising the public transport 

options as part of our event 

publicity – examples include the 

flower show and picnic in the 

park 

6 Undertake regular 

communications activity to 

educate residents about the 

bus services, bus routes 

and ticketing options in the 

borough to encourage 

increased bus usage when 

it is safe to do so. The 

Council undertakes a 

borough wide public 

transport survey using 

social media & other 

technology to engage with 

residents, businesses and 

employers about bus 

services and public 

transport. 

 

Use of 

communications 

channels to 

promote bus use 

 

 

 

 

Incorporate into 

next Resident 

Survey  

Shared Service 

Lead  

Communications 

and Visitor 

Economy 

 

 

 

Shared Service 

Lead Policy and 

Transformation 

  

Not started due to Covid 

pandemic and restrictions. Will 

be progressed once restrictions 

on busy indoor spaces eases. 

This will include contact with the 

dial-a-ride team.  

 

 

 

Residents survey complete and 

findings being analysed.  

 

7 The Council engage with 

Greater Manchester 

Combined Authority 

/Lancashire County Council 

on cross boundary routes 

should the Greater 

Manchester Combined 

Letter to be sent 

to addressed both 

Public Transport 

Manager at LCC 

and TFGM 

requesting 

Service Lead 

Spatial Planning 

 

 

Complete. Issues raised under 

Duty to Cooperate in a meeting 

with Transport for Greater 

Manchester on 29/7/21 and 

detailed in response. 

Incorporated into the Councils’ 

response to ‘Places for 

Agenda Page 109 Agenda Item 9



 
 

Authorities instigate 

franchising and request to 

be consulted on how bus 

services are run across 

cross boundary routes and 

be included in their 

integrated ticketing scheme. 

engagement  Everyone’ –Greater Manchester 

Proposed Development Plan. 

8 Chorley Council will engage 

with all bus operators to 

determine and recommend 

which bus routes are viably 

operable.  

Workshop to be 

arranged as part 

of emerging Local 

plan and transport 

infrastructure 

planning  

Service Lead 

Spatial Planning 

 

In progress. Delayed due to 

impact on Covid on bus travel 

and ability to meet in person. 

Developed list of bus providers. 

LCC expressed preference for 

Chorley not to seek this data. 

Plan is to engage providers – 

letter prepared  

9 The Council continues to 

progress discussions with 

Lancashire County Council 

to take over the Chorley 

Interchange. 

Progress 

Commercial 

negotiations 

Service Lead 

Commercial and 

Assets 

Not progressed/not 

appropriate due to viability.  

10 The Climate Change 

Working Group to further 

investigate bus routes for 

new developments in 

conjunction with the 

preparation of the Central 

Lancashire Local Plan. 

Workshop to be 

arranged as part 

of emerging Local 

plan and transport 

infrastructure 

planning and 

reported back to 

the CCWG.  

Service Lead - 

Spatial 

Planning/Climate 

Change 

Officer/Central 

Lancashire  

Local Plan Co-

Ordinator 

In progress – Transport 

consultants have undertaken 

initial assessed impact of 

proposed sites. Workshop not 

started as proposed sites still 

being assessed/finalised as part 

of local plan process. Once 

agreed in principle, work can 

begin to map infrastructure 

needs 

11 The Council  (Spatial 

planning) will use 

reasonable endeavours to 

safeguard a site for the 

reopening of the Coppull rail 

station in the Central 

Lancashire Local Plan, 

include the project in the 

Central Lancashire 

Highways and Transport 

Masterplan and engage 

with Lancashire County 

Council and relevant 

Initial scoping 

meeting to be 

arranged to 

identify necessary 

feasibility and 

business case 

work required.  

Service Lead 

Spatial 

Planning/Service 

Lead Commercial 

and 

Assets/Director 

Planning and 

Development/Direc

tor Commercial 

/Central Lancashire 

Local Plan Co-

Ordinator 

In Progress. 

Bid for Restoring Your Railways 

for viability funding was 

unsuccessful. Will be considered 

as part of local plan subject to 

locations for growth and 

supporting sustainable transport 

required.   

Agenda Page 110 Agenda Item 9



 
 

partners to bring this 

forward 

12 The Council to lobby for 

improved railway services 

across the borough at 

stations such as Adlington.  

 

Email to be sent to 

Owain Roberts, 

Regional 

Stakeholder 

Manager, 

Northern Trains 

requesting 

engagement with 

Chorley Council 

(i.e. districts) and 

not just upper tier 

in consultations 

regarding train 

service changes. 

Service Lead 

Spatial Planning 

 

 

 

Complete Chorley Council now 

on the Consultation database 

and are regularly responding to 

consultations regarding services 

in Chorley.  

 

13 The Council to lobby to 

improve our rail connections 

to the airport at stations in 

addition to Chorley 

 

Email to be sent to 

Owain Roberts, 

Regional 

Stakeholder 

Manager, 

Northern Trains 

requesting 

engagement with 

Chorley Council 

(i.e. districts) and 

not just upper tier 

in consultations 

regarding train 

service changes. 

Service Lead  

Spatial Planning 

 

 

Complete. Chorley Council now 

on the Consultation database 

and representations to be made 

in future consultations 

 

 

14

a) 

 

 

 

Undertake communications 

activity to highlight the work 

of Dial-a-Ride including the 

community car scheme, 

how it can assist the 

community and dispel the 

myth the service is just for 

the elderly and publicise 

their need for volunteers. 

Engage with 

Manager, Central 

Lancs Dial-a-Ride 

to develop 

marketing strategy 

Shared Service 

Lead 

Communications 

and Visitor 

Economy 

 

Not started due to Covid and 

regulations around social 

distancing etc. Will start during 

next quarter. 

Details of a survey by LCC to 

explore rural car clubs was 

shared with ward and parish 

councillors on IKN in January 

2022. 

 

14

b) 

Dial-a-Ride be invited to 

attend a Chorley Liaison 

meeting to raise awareness 

DAR to attend 
future Parish 
Liaison Meeting 

Democratic 
Services Team 
Leader  

In progress. Dial a Ride have 

been invited to attend the next 

Agenda Page 111 Agenda Item 9



 
 

 of the service for both users 

and volunteers. 

meeting on 16 March 2022. 

 

14

c) 

 

Dial-a-Ride be invited to 

contact the Parish Council 

clerks as there was 

significant interest from 

Members to have a Dial-a-

Ride service in their Wards 

and Parishes. This should 

include regular articles 

IntheBoro and InTheKnow 

and notice board 

communications. 

Regular articles 

for IntheBoro and 

IntheKnow to 

Democratic 

Services 

Shared Service 

Lead 

Communications 

and Visitor 

Economy 

 Not started due to Covid, now 

regulations eased will be 

progressed. 

 

14

d) 

In addition to funding, the 

Council explores how it can 

work with Dial-a- Ride to 

develop its offer to residents 

by working with local VCFS 

partners and the health 

community e.g. hospital 

appointments, vaccination 

appointments etc. 

Regular 

engagement to 
take place with 
DAR manager to 
identify ways to 
increase uptake. 

Transformation & 

Change Team 
Leader 

Service Lead 
Communities 
  

In Progress. Central Lancashire 

DAR provide regular updates to 

the Council on key outcomes as 

a result of funding that is 

provided to them. 

 The annual review of their 

progress is currently under way 

with outcomes to be agreed on 

developing its offer 

 

15 Chorley Council to lobby 

Lancashire County Council 

to create a Public Transport 

Task Group to scrutinise 

transport routes and 

opportunities across 

Lancashire  

Letter to be sent 

on behalf of the 

Chair to Head of 

Planning at LCC 

to request 

establishment of a 

task group.  

Service Lead  

Spatial Planning 

 

In progress. LCC willing to 

engage including a member 

Learning Session for public 

transport planning. No appetite 

for a task group. 

 

16 The Council should explore 

the feasibility of attracting a 

community car share club to 

the borough. 

Initial engagement 

to be undertaken 

with providers.  

Shared Service 

Lead 

Transformation and 

Partnership 

 

Not Started  

To be considered as part of the 

sustainable transport element of 

the HR policy review 

17 When appropriate, the 

Council to actively promote 

car sharing for staff at both 

Town Hall and Union Street, 

using methods including but 

not limited to IntheKnow, 

To be raised at 

Staff Matters and 

the Loop to 

explore appetite 

and rolled out if 

Shared Service 

Lead 

Transformation and 

Partnership 

 

 Not Started due to Covid. 

 To be considered as part of the 

sustainable transport element of 

the HR policy Review 

Agenda Page 112 Agenda Item 9



 
 

IntheBoro, and Lancashire 

Shared Wheels 

feasible.   

18 The Council will work with 

all transport partners to 

improve accessibility, 

timetable and facility 

provision across the 

borough including an Oyster 

card for all journeys.  

Initial invitation for 

expressions of 

interest in 

developing a 

scheme, in 

partnership with 

LCC. 

Service Lead  

Spatial Planning 

 

Changed – see above, LCC 

proposing the Bus Enhancement 

Partnership will deliver 

improvements.  

 

 

19 Chorley Council to work 

with Lancashire County 

Council, the Canal and 

River Trust and other 

organizations to identify 

cycle opportunities, and 

plan for the implementation 

of cycle routes and cycle 

hubs 

Engagement to be 

undertaken and 

schemes and 

opportunities to be 

progressed 

Service Lead  

Spatial Planning 

 

 

 In progress. Series of meetings 

have taken place. Canal and 

Rivers trust have provided a list 

of schemes for consideration 

and this is being developed into 

feasibility /costs. 

  

20 Establish a Cycle Task 

Group to look at cycle 

opportunities, and cycle 

routes in the borough 

Request for a 

Scrutiny Task 

Group.  

Democratic 

Services Team 

Leader to flag with 

Overview and 

Scrutiny Chair 

 No longer appropriate – 

changed to the Cycle Project 

with 5 key actions.  

 

21 The Council should explore 

the possibility of electric 

charging points on council 

buildings to allow people to 

charge their electric bikes.  

 

Feasibility and 

demand study to 

be undertaken 

Climate Change 

Officer/Asset 

Manager (Property 

and Facilities) 

In progress. Focus has been 

ensuring that the council has 

secure bike shelters for council 

employees. Charging ports for 

electric bikes will become more 

feasible and at a lower cost as 

the council’s electric vehicle 

charging infrastructure is 

expanded. The demand for bike 

shelters and electric bike 

charging points will be 

determined during an internal 

commuter survey of staff which 

is currently being drafted 

 

Climate change and air quality 

13. The work noted in this report impacts positively on the climate change and sustainability 
targets of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place. 

Agenda Page 113 Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

Equality and diversity 

14. Not applicable.  

Risk 

15. There are no risks associated with this work at present.  

Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer 

16. The report is for noting and therefore there is no comments from the Chief Finance 
Officer. 
 

Comments of the Monitoring Officer 

17. The report is for noting and therefore there is no comments from the Monitoring 
Officer. 

Background documents  

Final Report of Overview and Scrutiny Task Group Sustainable Public Transport 

http://mod/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=123236&ISATT=1&$LO$=1#search=%22sustainable%

20transport%20%22 

Report Author: Email: Telephone: Date: 

Zoe Whiteside  zoe.whiteside@chorley.gov.uk 5711 02/03/2022 

 

Agenda Page 114 Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

 

Developing the Councils Green Agenda - Monitoring Report 
Number 3 
 

Is this report confidential? No  

 

Is this decision key? Not applicable 

 

 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. To provide a final update on progress made on the recommendations of the Task 
Group on Developing the Council’s Green Agenda.  

 
Recommendations to Scrutiny Committee 
 
2. To note the contents of the report 
 
Reasons for recommendations 
 

3. None, for information only 
 
Other options considered and rejected 
 

4. Not applicable, report is an update on recommendation progress only 
 
Executive summary 
 

5. This report provides an update of the actions arising from the Green Agenda Task 
Group. Of the 23 recommendations originally made, all have been progressed and a 
total of 13 have been completed, a further 3 are completed to the point of approval and 
whilst the remaining 7 are ongoing long-term pieces of work.  
 

6. Progression of these work streams has been cross collaborative and has required 
input and support from teams throughout the Council.  

 

7. All ongoing recommendations have been integrated into the Climate Change Strategy 
Action Plan which is currently out for public consultation.   

 
Corporate priorities 
 

8. The report relates to the following corporate priorities: 

Report of Meeting Date 

 

Director of Planning and 

Development  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Thursday, 17 March 

2022 

Agenda Page 115 Agenda Item 10



 
 

 

Involving residents in improving their 

local area and equality of access for all 

A strong local economy 

Clean, safe, and healthy communities An ambitious council that does more to 

meet the needs of residents and the local 

area 

 

Background to the report 
 

9. The Green Agenda work was set as a corporate priority which was first reported to 
Overview and Scrutiny in March 2021. This work has since been integrated into the 
larger Climate Change Programme.  
 

10. A budget of £500,000 has been made available for the completion and progression of 
green agenda work, this budget has recently been increased by a further £260k to give 
an overall total of £760k..  

 
11. This project sits within the Spatial Planning Team with dedicated Climate Change 

officers in post within the Council, dedicated to the completion of the project and climate 
related work.  

 
Green Agenda Recommendation Update  
 

12. The largest piece of work that has been completed by the Climate Change officers 
following the previous monitoring report has been the drafting of the Climate Change 
Strategy which is currently out for public consultation. The actions within this Strategy 
include all ongoing and progressing actions of the green agenda recommendations 
made by Overview and Scrutiny. 

 

13. A secondary dedicated Climate Change Officer commenced at the Council in January 
2022, whose work is focused on Air Quality and Carbon monitoring. 

 

14. The table below lists all the recommendations made by the Task Group. The specific 
O&S recommendations have been extracted from the larger Climate Change 
Programme of work.  

 

15. Progress to date is detailed in the update column of the column. A total of 13 actions 
have been completed, a further 3 are completed to draft awaiting approval and the 
remaining 7 are long-term ongoing actions which have been integrated into the 
Climate Change Strategy.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 116 Agenda Item 10



 
 

Table of Recommendations and Progress to Date.  

 

 

No Recommendation/ Action Lead Update 

1 Undertake work to map and 
calculate the council’s current 
carbon footprint 

Climate Change 
Team and Assts 

Complete  
 
The 2019 carbon footprint audit was 
completed and the public facing report has 
been reviewed onside the Climate Change 
Strategy at SMT, Executive Cabinet, Climate 
Change Working Group and Leader Brief. 
The 2019 carbon audit report is attached 
within Appendix 1.  
Moving forward we have a dedicated Air 
Quality and Carbon office who reports and 
publishes the Councils carbon footprint 
annually, this will also go to the campaign 
body UK100.  

2 Commission work to develop a 
roadmap and action plan towards 
achieving carbon neutrality by 
2030 including targets, actions, 
and measures  

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer  

Complete 
 
The Lancashire County Council has 
commissioned and published the Climate and 
Environment reports within the Greater 
Lancashire Plan which covers net zero 
pathways,  
The climate change strategy encompasses 
the climate change programme of work and 
any final work within the O&S 
recommendations. This strategy is currently 
out for public consultation. 
Actions within the strategy include the 
formulation of an asset decarbonisation action 
plan and the analysis of tree canopy cover 
within the borough.  

3 Set up a council-led climate 
change steering group to oversee 
activity and provide direction 

Service Lead 
Spatial Planning 
/Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 

Complete 
 
The Climate Change Working Group meets 8 
times a year with the Climate Change 
Portfolio Holder being the Chair. This Working 
Group oversees the programme of work and 
the Climate Change Budget. 

4 Embed green considerations in 
all decision making by including a 
space for an environmental 
impact comment on all committee 
reports. Also review the 
sustainability element of the 
existing Integrated Impact 
Assessment 

Democratic 
Services Team 
Lead Climate 
Change 
Programme 
Officer / 

Complete 
Environmental impacts are considered within 
all committee reports with environmental 
impacts and remediation measures 
considered. 

5 Produce regular monitoring 
reports to track progress against 
key objectives and measures 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 

Complete  
 
All work within the climate change programme 
is reported to the Climate Change Working 
Groups. The working group meets 

Agenda Page 117 Agenda Item 10



 
 

No Recommendation/ Action Lead Update 

approximately 8 times a year.  
Work which is monitored includes:  

 Carbon footprint of the Council and 

the borough  

 Air Quality  

 Waste and Recycling  

 Community and business engagement 

 Fleet use, fuel use, and 

decarbonisation  

 Decarbonisation of assets  

 Green spaces and tree planting  

The Climate change strategy includes work 
within all of these areas which is re-evaluated 
every 2 years with a public version of the 
climate change strategy publish following this 
evaluation.  

6 Identify dedicated officer 
resource to coordinate 
development of the council’s 
green agenda and roadmap to 
becoming carbon neutral 

Service Lead 
Spatial Planning 
/Local Plan 
Coordinator 

Complete 
 
Two dedicated climate officers are now in 
post.  The Climate Change Programme 
Officer and the Air Quality and Carbon 
Officer.  

7 Consider the additional resources 
needed to deliver the action plan 
which could include funding for 
specialist knowledge, additional 
expertise, or specific projects 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 

Complete – this action will be continually re-
evaluated as climate work continues and 
evolves due to changes in legislation and 
local priorities.  
 
There are multiple networking groups 
between councils and other organisations 
within Lancashire which allows for information 
sharing and support. Local businesses have 
provided support and specialist businesses 
have previously been brought in to provide 
support.  
The requirement for internal officers has been 
continually monitored, an additional officer 
has been added through this process to 
monitor and mitigate air quality and carbon 
usage.  

8 As part of developing road map 
to 2030, key priorities should 
include investigation of 
renewable energy sources for the 
council as well as sustainable 
transport options and air quality 
monitoring  

Service Lead 
Communities 
/Private Sector 
Housing Team 
Leader/Public 
Protection/Street 
scene 

Air Quality – Work has commenced on a 12-
month case study with the real time 
monitoring equipment and the additionally 
fitted Noxx tubes – the data from the tubes 
can only be analysed annually.  
Work on the delivery of the recommendations 
of the O&S Task Group for Sustainable 
Transport are underway which include 
promoting greener travel options and 
engaging with key partners to improve bus, 
train and walking and cycling options. This 
work is being integrated into the Climate 
Change Programme of work.  

Agenda Page 118 Agenda Item 10



 
 

No Recommendation/ Action Lead Update 

The Town hall has been priced and feasibility 
work has been completed for low carbon 
technology options. The next feasibility 
studies on other assets will be completed and 
culminated into an asset decarbonisation 
action plan.  
A further action within the Climate Change 
Strategy is producing a low carbon 
technology options paper for senior 
management and relevant member to allow 
for further understanding feasible 
technologies, constraints, and upcoming 
technology.  

9 Through the council’s role as a 
Licensing Authority, investigate 
and develop an action plan for 
electric or hybrid Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire 
vehicles 

Customer 
Services 
Manager 
enforcement 

The Council currently licenses 10 hybrid 
vehicles as private hire vehicles. The 
Council’s current policy allows only vehicles 
which comply with Euro 5 Emissions 
standards to be granted a new licence (with 
effect from 2017) and that all existing vehicles 
must comply with this policy by 1st January 
2024.  
The overarching Taxi Licensing Policy is 
currently being renewed. This is a large and 
controversial piece or work which will likely be 
drafted early 2023. Further work into 
hybrid/EVs will be put into the formulation of 
this policy. 

10 Establish a dialogue with 
Lancashire County Council to 
consider the opportunity for 
sustainable transport schemes 
including commercial models 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 

Complete 
 
Task group has been set up with LCC 
authorities for a county wide funding bid for 
EV ChargePoint’s            
Procurement is currently out for new 
ChargePoint installation partner to complete 
scope and installation work throughout county 
to apply for the On-Street Residential Parking 
Scheme.  
The current focus of the task group is options 
for businesses surrounding the Greater 
Manchester Clean Air Zone and it’s impacts.  
This task group has continued to evolve as 
work throughout the county progresses.   

11 As part of developing road map 
to 2030, key priorities should 
include investigation of 
sustainable transport options 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer/Street 
scene 
Manager/HR 
Manager 

Delivery of the recommendations from the 
O&S Task Group on Sustainable Public 
Transport are on track. This work has 
included positive engagement with LCC 
regarding the new Enhanced Partnership for 
Bus provision, representations to Northern 
Rail on planned changes to the rail service 
through Chorley and the development of a 
package of work around cycling which is to be 
presented to O&S in March 2022 for approval.  
 

Agenda Page 119 Agenda Item 10



 
 

No Recommendation/ Action Lead Update 

The Council have taken steps to acquire 
electric fleet vehicles and put in place 
electrical charging facilities at Bengal street, & 
Flat Iron carpark. There are 6 electric vehicle 
charging bays available on the Flat Iron car 
park and 2 on Cleveland Streetcar park. 
Locations for bicycle storage in the town 
centre centres are being investigated to be 
drafted into the updated Carpark Strategy. 
This work correlates to the feasibility and 
pricing work that is currently being undertaken 
between the Canal and Rivers Trust with 
Chorley Council to improve the paths along 
the canal in the borough. Improvements such 
as these will promote increased cycling to the 
Town Centre from outer areas.  

12 Investigate green burial sites in 
Chorley, including council-owned 
cemeteries 

Street scene 
Manager/Asset 
Manager /Open 
Space Strategy 
Officer 

Open Space Strategy Team are engaging 
with colleagues including Streetscene and 
Commercial Services to look at options for 
future cemetery provision including green 
burial sites and a paper is expected to be 
presented to SMT and then Members in 
before May 2022. 

13 Promote sustainable 
developments and the council’s 
contribution by developing a 
‘green plaque’ scheme as a 
visible way to identify buildings 
that have strong green 
credentials. 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 

Currently in draft for finalisation and approval 
This work is being completed to coincide with 
the green accreditation for businesses.  
This work will be an award which will tie into 
the existing awards ceremony run by the 
Business Engagement Team.  
The draft application for the award is in 
Appendix 2. This has been drafted alongside 
Crowberry Consulting, this openness of the 
application is standard for business awards 
and allows for a wide range of businesses to 
apply.  
The goal of this work is for the awards to be 
decided by November 2022 to allow the 
awards to be promoted at the next Climate 
Change Business Event in Chorley.  

14 Work with local housing providers 
to ensure that Chorley’s housing 
stock is as efficient as possible 
and to ensure that opportunities 
are not being missed to save 
energy e.g. boiler replacements, 
insulation, and recycling facilities. 

Service Lead 
Communities / 
Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer/ 

Complete, communication and support will be 
ongoing long term. 
Increased funding opportunity available 
through the Local Authority Green Home’s 
grant to help those in fuel poverty. Housing 
team has been working on this long term.  
All local housing providers have been 
contacted. All local housing providers in the 
area are committed to meeting the council 
targets. Changes to the fuel poverty strategy 
this year have meant that all homes must 
have improved fabrication in the next 5 years 
to meet EPC band C by 2030. All companies 
are working on, or have released, a climate 

Agenda Page 120 Agenda Item 10



 
 

No Recommendation/ Action Lead Update 

emergency strategy to include scope 1,2 and 
3 emissions. The initial focus of housing 
providers is currently meeting the EPC Band 
C 2030 requirement.  
Unfortunately, the Lancashire County Council 
consortium application for the social housing 
decarbonisation fund (SHDF) was not 
progressed to a final bid due to the lack of 
feasibility and management of the work. The 
next wave of funding will not require a 
consortium to be managed by a local 
authority. All local housing providers are 
looking to apply however the feasibility of 
sites in Chorley have not yet been 
determined.  

15 Develop a 10-year tree planting 
strategy for Chorley to coordinate 
the planting of trees and 
hedgerows across the borough, 
taking a partnership approach 
including workshops, species 
management and maintenance 

Open Space 
Strategy Officer 

Completed  
The tree action plan can be publicly found on 
the Council’s website. 

16 Investigation of renewable 
energy sources for the council 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 

As with Recommendation 8, work surrounding 
renewable energy is ongoing: 

 An options paper is being produced 

around low carbon technology for 

Council Assets and the borough, their 

feasibility, and any constraints.  

 An asset Decarbonisation Action Plan 

is being produced to detail the feasible 

work, costs and carbon saved of 

decarbonisation within Council assets 

Decarbonisation work which has already 
occurred within the Council includes: 

 Installation of energy efficient LED 

lighting in all buildings  

 Solar panels on the Town Hall  

 New builds meet BREEAM 

sustainability levels 

17 Develop a communications and 
engagement campaign via social 
media and other outlets to 
educate residents about the 
green agenda and encourage 
small behaviour changes that will 
collectively add up to a more 
significant impact. Include 
information about sustainable 
living and sources of advice and 
support. 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer/Service 
Lead 
Communications 

Complete 
An internal communication plan has been 
devised. Whilst a number of comms work is 
done on an ad hoc basis, social media posts 
regarding behavioural change and 
sustainability information is prepared on a 
yearly basis. This document also includes any 
community event and campaign dates.  
Communication work has included the 
infographics of themed sustainability options. 
These are posted on a monthly basis 
approximately and then saved on the 

Agenda Page 121 Agenda Item 10



 
 

No Recommendation/ Action Lead Update 

Councils Climate Change webpage.  
This is a live document that is continually 
evolving. A public communications report will 
be published following the Climate Change 
Strategy public consultation as a round-up of 
the community engagement and any results 
of interest.   

18 Immediately establish a 
networking group to consider 
environmental issues, meeting 
regularly to act as a group of 
community leaders for the green 
agenda, engaging wider 
stakeholders and utilising local 
expertise.  Incorporate a youth 
element by working with local 
schools and the Youth Zone. 
Deliver a networking launch 
event in Spring 2020. 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 

There are a number of 
Climate/eco/sustainability community groups 
established within different facets of the 
community such as:  

 High School Eco Council – hosted by 

Inspire 

 Primary School Eco Group – hosted 

by each school in a round robin  

 Chorley Church Sustainability Network  

 Chorley Business network – run 

through events hosted by Chorley 

Council 

 Green Living Chorley  

Each of these groups is engaged with the 
Council and the Climate Change in different 
ways depending on the support they have 
asked for.  
Based off feedback from these groups the 
Climate Change officers are looking for a third 
party group to run and organise an adults 
networking group which brings all the 
community groups together where the Council 
can be a participant and supporter over an 
organiser.  

19 Support local businesses to be 
more environmentally friendly by 
promoting best practice and 
demonstrating the business 
benefits.  For example, GA Pet 
Foods offered to act as an 
ambassador for the green 
agenda, advising other 
businesses and sharing their 
knowledge/experience 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 
 

Complete  
The first Climate Change business event held 
in November 2021 was very success, with the 
event reaching it maximum capacity. The 
follow up questionnaire to attended 
businesses is currently out, this was emailed 
directly, and will provide insight into what 
businesses would like to see next.  
 
Useful links for businesses is available on the 
Council’s climate change webpage include 
grant opportunities and carbon footprint 
reduction support.  

20 Establish a staff working group 
as a sub-group of Staff Matters to 
consider how the council can 
support and encourage a more 
environmentally friendly 
workplace including the further 
developing of initiatives like 
Sustainable September. 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 
 

Completed  
Two Climate Change Officer Working Group 
meetings have been held so far with the next 
meeting planned for March 2023. These 
meeting provide opportunities to spread 
awareness of work that is ongoing, educate 
and share ideas across different teams.  

Agenda Page 122 Agenda Item 10



 
 

No Recommendation/ Action Lead Update 

21 Develop an accreditation scheme 
for ‘green’ traders and 
businesses operating in the town 
centre and demonstrating 
commitment to a set of specific 
green principles such as 
minimising waste and cutting out 
single use plastics by providing 
reusable or recyclable 
containers. 

Service Lead 
(Development 
and Business) 
/Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer  
 

Currently in draft for finalisation and approval 
This work is being completed to coincide with 
the green plaque for buildings.  
This work is also work as an award which will 
tie into the existing awards ceremony run by 
the Business Engagement Team.  
Similarly, to the green plaque application 
process, the questions have been left open 
ended to allow for a wide range of businesses 
to apply no matter the size or function of the 
business. During research this has been 
noted as the standard application process. 
This work was also supported by Crowberry 
Consulting.  
The draft of this application can also be found 
in Appendix 2. The goal this work is also to 
have to finalised and approved in time to be 
promoted at the next Climate Change 
Business event in November 2022.   

22 Adopt a clear set of principles for 
our approach to planning policy 
in relation to the green agenda 
such as those recommend by the 
Royal Town Planning Institute 
and apply this throughout the 
preparation of the local plan 
including public transport, green 
spaces and sustainable 
development. 

Local Plan 
Coordinator 

Work on the Local Plan is continuing. The 
Local Plan team are working closely with 
County colleagues to ensure the outcomes 
from the environment work commissioned to 
support the Greater Lancashire Plan is 
accounted for. The team are also working 
with other Lancashire Councils to ensure 
there is a consistency in climate change 
policies developed across the region to 
enable effective delivery of change in this 
area. 
Climate change and the build back greener 
promise following covid are key areas of 
focus for the new plan. 

23 That the Leader of the Council be 
requested to write to the 
Secretaries of State for Business, 
Energy & Industrial Strategy; 
Transport; Environment, Food 
and Rural Affairs; and Housing, 
Communities and Local 
Government calling for the 
creation, provision or devolution 
of powers and resources to make 
achievement of the 2030 target 
possible in Chorley; council 
specifically calls on government 
to: 
Ensure the electricity grid is 
equipped to cope with a higher 
percentage of renewable and 
electric cars 
Increase minimum energy 
efficiency standards in the private 

Climate Change 
Programme 
Officer 
 

Drafts completed  
Following the notice of motion to agree of 
goal of net zero by 2030, the Leader has sent 
letters to parliament requesting for the 
devolution of powers to aid in Chorley Council 
reaching this goal.  
Following recent publications of strategies 
and legislation such as the levelling up 
scheme, net zero strategy and the rising of 
the minimum energy efficiency in the private 
sector a number of letters have been drafted 
to address specific issues that are not 
covered within the schemes.  
The letter by the leader and drafted letters 
can all be found in Appendix 3.   

Agenda Page 123 Agenda Item 10

https://www.rtpi.org.uk/media/3152143/Rising%20to%20the%20Climate%20Crisis.pdf


 
 

No Recommendation/ Action Lead Update 

rented sector (to at least a 
minimum EPC band C rating in 
2030) and empower local 
authorities to ensure compliance 
Deliver a major investment in 
public transport, walking and 
cycling including bus services 

 

 

Climate change and air quality 
 
16. The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability targets 

of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place. The work 
of the Climate Change Programme aims to mitigate the effects of climate change 
 

Equality and diversity 

17. No impact, this programme is accessible to all and is looking to improve equality and 
diversity across the borough by addressing the impacts of climate change and promoting 
sustainability.  

 
Risk 
 

18. The risks associated with this work are concerning the failure to mitigate the impact of 
climate change locally, and the challenge to achieve the targets and ambitions of the 
Council to deliver on the net zero carbon emissions goal of 2030. Possible delays in 
delivering the actions relating to nature recovery and sustainability in the environment 
when working with external stakeholders.   

 
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer 
 
19. As the report is for noting there are no financial implications at this point.  
 
Comments of the Monitoring Officer 
 
20. There is no general statutory duty imposed on English local authorities in relation to 

climate change. 
 
Background documents 

 

Developing the Council's Green Agenda Monitoring Report 1 

Developing the Council's Green Agenda Monitoring Report 2 

 

 

Appendices  
 

Appendix A – Carbon Footprint Audit  

Appendix B – Draft Green Business Award Application  

Appendix C – Draft Government Letters  

 

Report Author: Email: Telephone: Date: 

Agenda Page 124 Agenda Item 10

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/documents/s123548/Developing%20the%20Councils%20Green%20Agenda%20Monitoring%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/documents/s133091/Developing%20the%20Councils%20Green%20Agenda%20-%20Monitoring%20Report%20Number%202%20Report%20Template%20Aug%202021.pdf


 
 

Sally Green (Climate Change 
Officer) 

Sally.Green@chorley.gov.uk 01257 
515845 

25/02/2022 

 

Agenda Page 125 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Carbon Footprint 

Report  

2019/20 

Agenda Page 127 Agenda Item 10



Table of Contents 
1. Background ................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Methodology ............................................................................................................... 3 

Baseline years ................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Carbon Dioxide Equivalent (CO2e) ................................................................................ 4 

Council Emissions Analysis ........................................................................................... 4 

Borough emissions ........................................................................................................ 6 

3. Results ....................................................................................................................... 7 

Council Emissions .......................................................................................................... 7 

Borough Emissions ........................................................................................................ 8 

 

Agenda Page 128 Agenda Item 10



 

1. Background  
 

1.1. Chorley Council is committed to reducing Greenhouse Gas emissions across its 

estate and operations. 

 

1.2. Chorley Council is a member of the UK100, joining other local authorities to lead 

the UK’s response to climate change, acting sooner than the government’s goal 

by making substantial progress within the next decade to deliver Net Zero. We 

commit to do everything within our power and influence to rapidly reduce our 

greenhouse gas emissions and work with our residents and businesses to bring 

our wider communities’ emissions in line with Net Zero as soon as possible. We 

pledge to understand our impact on climate change, prioritise where action needs 

to be taken and monitor progress towards our goals. We will collaborate with our 

communities to build consensus for the solutions we need to transition to a Net 

Zero society that delivers multiple benefits and is fair, just and works for 

everyone. 

 

1.3. Chorley Council declared a climate emergency in November 2019 and set the 

ambitious goal of being net-zero by 2030. In order to provide a baseline upon 

which to measure improvements the Council must first establish its current 

carbon footprint. This work will be used to inform the Council’s Climate Change 

Strategy. 

 

1.4. Within the Climate Change Strategy 2022 a priority was set to monitor the carbon 

footprint of the Council and Borough annually, in order to monitor progress 

towards the 2030 goal and inform future work and actions.  

 

1.5. A carbon footprint is a measure of the greenhouse gas emissions released by an 

individual, organisation or communities’ activities. The carbon footprint for the 

Council as an organisation and the borough have been calculated.  

 

1.6. As a tier 2 authority, the council does not have the level of direct control over the 

borough as it does over its own resources, these include: Planning and building 

control; Environmental health; Housing; Parking; Parks and countryside; Waste 

management; and leisure facilities.  

 

1.7. Analysis of Borough emissions allows for the identification of key emitting sectors 

that the council can support to reduce carbon emissions.  

 

2. Methodology  
 

Reporting Period 
2.1. Carbon emissions are measured over the financial year, therefore the period 

covered in this report is 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020. 

 

Agenda Page 129 Agenda Item 10



Baseline Year 
2.2. The financial year 2019/20 was chosen as the baseline year as it was the most 

readily available data set following the Councils declaration of a climate 

emergency. The borough data is published with a two-year time lag therefore 

2019 is the most recent dataset for the borough as a whole.  

 

Carbon Dioxide Equivalent (CO2e) 
2.3. Carbon dioxide is not the only greenhouse gas, there are five other key 

greenhouse gases that contribute to global warming, these are: Methane, Nitrous 

Oxide, Hydrofluorocarbons, Perfluorocarbons and Sulphur Hexafluoride.  

 

2.4. Each Greenhouse Gas varies in potency, which relates to their ability to trap heat 

in the atmosphere. For example, methane is 80 times more potent than carbon 

dioxide. Therefore, to standardise results, all the Greenhouse Gases are 

collectively expressed under a single value termed the carbon dioxide equivalent 

(CO2e).  

 

2.5. CO2e accounts for the seven main Greenhouse Gases that contribute to climate 

change, as detailed in Table 1. 

 

2.6. CO2e conversion factors are set by the Department for Business, Energy & 

Industrial Strategy (BEIS) on an annual basis.  

 

 
Table 1: Details of the seven main Greenhouse Gases, expressed under Carbon Dioxide Equivalent (CO2e), and 
the main sources for these emissions. 

Greenhouse Gases Main Sources of Greenhouse Gases 

Carbon Dioxide (CO2) - Coal, Oil and Gas (Fossil Fuels) 
- Manufacturing  
- Cement Production 
- Deforestation 

Methane (CH4) - Livestock  
- Organic waste 

Nitrous Oxide (N2O) - Agriculture fertiliser  
- Waste management  

Fluorinated Gases (F-Gases): 
-Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) 
-Perfluorocarbons (PFCs) 
-Sulphur Hexafluoride (SF6) 
-Nitrogen Trifluoride (NF3) 

 
- Refrigeration  
- Aerosols  

 

Council Emissions Analysis  

Scope 

2.7. Greenhouse gas emissions are categorised into three groups known as ‘Scopes’ 

which are the most internationally used tool, defined within the Greenhouse Gas 

Protocol. Definitions and activities of each scope can be found in Table 2.  

 

Agenda Page 130 Agenda Item 10



Table 2: Description of the emission sources included within the Councils carbon footprint within each scope 

Greenhouse Gases Emissions Scopes Activities 

Scope 1 Direct emissions from sources owned or 
controlled by the organisation 

- Gas for heating 
Council Buildings 

- Fuel consumption 
from council fleet 

Scope 2 Indirect emissions (owned) produced by 
consuming purchased energy from a utility 
provider 

- Electricity for 
building use 

Scope 3 Indirect emissions (not owned) produced 
from Council activities but at sources not 
owned or controlled by the Council 

- Staff business travel 
- Transmissions and 

distribution losses 
within the supply 
chain  

- Well to Tank 
emissions during 
energy production  

- Waste disposal 

 

Missing data 

 

2.8. The Council has worked to collect all available to ensure the Council carbon 

footprint is accurate and well informed. With that being said some data is missing 

or has been excluded, details of each can be found below in Table 3.  

 

2.9. It is unlikely that this missing and excluded data is likely to have a large impact on 

the overall carbon footprint.  

 

Table 3: Missing data for the 2019/20 carbon footprint calculations 

Missing Data Outcome 

Scope 1 2019 Annual Fleet Miles  An annual average was 
calculated with the fleet 
miles of one month for 
calculations 

Assets which the Council own but are not in 
charge of electricity or gas  

Excluded due to lack of 
control over sources 

Scope 3 Recycling data for a number of assets not held Excluded due to lack of 
figures, overall waste and 
recycling emissions still 
included 

Procurement and material use  Excluded due to lack of 
data 

Business use of public transport  Excluded due to lack of 
data  

 

Conversion factors  

 

2.10. The methodology behind the calculation of GHG emissions is through the 

application of documented and approved GHG emission conversion factors. 

Agenda Page 131 Agenda Item 10



These factors are calculated ratios which relate emissions to a proxy measure of 

activity from an emissions source. 

 

2.11. Further detail on the methodology and emissions factors can be found at;  

Government conversion factors for company reporting of greenhouse gas 

emissions - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 

2.12. The data of emission source used, also known as activity data, is multiplied by 

the relevant emission factor to calculate CO2e equivalent emissions 

CO2e= activity data x emission conversion factor 

 

2.13. Emission factors for the 2019 period can be found on;  

Greenhouse gas reporting: conversion factors 2019 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 

Borough emissions  
 

Data Source 

 

2.14. Each year, BEIS produce estimates of carbon dioxide emissions at a local 

authority and regional level. These statistics provide the most reliable and 

consistent breakdown of CO2 emissions across the country, using nationally 

available data sets. 

 

2.15. The data provided covers estimated emissions for the period between 2005 and 

2019. This is due to a two-year time lag between publishing figures. 

 

2.16. The raw data is published on the GOV.UK website and is accessible via the 

following link: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-

regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019 

 

 

Sub sectors  

 

2.17. The emissions sources for each borough are split across three main end-user 

sectors: Industry and Commercial, Domestic and Transport. These are further 

broken down to individual subsectors, as detailed in Table 4 below.  

 

Table 4: Main sectors and subsectors representing emission sources across the borough. 

Industrial and 
Commercial  

Domestic  Transport  

Agenda Page 132 Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019


 

 

 

 

 

 

2.18. An additional sector is Land Use, Land Use Change and Forestry (LULUCF). 

This is omitted from the main dataset, as BEIS do not consider this sector to be 

within the scope of local authorities. 

 

3. Results  

 

Council Emissions 
 

3.1. Overall, the total Council CO2e emissions for 2019/20 was 1,662,632 kg CO2e.  

 

3.2. The distribution of emissions across each activity and subsequent scope is 

shown in Figure 1 and Table 5. The three most significant sources of emissions 

were:  

 

a. Mains Gas, 64% of total emissions (1,079,572 kg Co2e) 

b. Mains Electricity, 31% of total emissions (529,004 kg CO2e) 

c. Fleet Transport, 2% of total emissions (37,205 kg CO2e) 

 

 

- Electricity  
- Gas  
- Large Industrial 
Installations 
- Other Fuels  
- Agriculture  

- Electricity  
- Gas  
- Other Fuels  

- A Roads  
- Minor Roads  
- Other  
 

Figure 1: Chorley Council source emissions (CO2e) for 2019/20 

Agenda Page 133 Agenda Item 10



 

 

Table 5: Proportion of Chorley Council emissions per scope 

Scope  Proportion of 
emissions  

Scope 1 67% (1,116,777 kg 
CO2e) 

Scope 2 32% (529,004 kg 
CO2e) 

Scope 3 2% (43938 kg CO2e) 

 

Borough Emissions 
 

3.3. The total fuel (gas, electricity, coal, biowaste, petrol, diesel) used within the 

borough for 2019 was 241 kt CO2 of which transport was the largest contributing 

sector. Shown in Figure 2.  

529,004.58 

1,079,572.34 

2.63 3.36 1.11 
37,205.34 16,843.26 27,088.08 

0.00

200,000.00

400,000.00

600,000.00

800,000.00

1,000,000.00

1,200,000.00

Mains
Electricity

Mains Gas WTT -
Electricity

WTT - Gas Electricity T&D Fleet
Transport

Business
transport

Waste
Disposal

K
g 

C
O

2
e 

Sources CO2e Emissions for 2019/20 

Agenda Page 134 Agenda Item 10



 

 
 
 

3.4. Overall estimated CO2 emissions for the Chorley borough in 2019 was 651.9 kt 
CO2 emissions. The emissions between 2005 and 2019 have been gradually 
decreasing.  
 

3.5. With an estimated 2019 population of 118,600 which equates to 5.5 t CO2 per 
capita.  

 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2: Chorley Borough total fuel use and sector contribution between 2005 and 2019 

Date Source: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019 

0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

250.0

300.0

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

V
o

lu
m

e 
o

f 
fu

el
 (

kt
o

e)
 

Year 

Domestic: All Fuels Transport: All Fuels

Industrial and Commercial: All Fuels Total: All Fuels

Figure 3: Chorley borough CO2 emissions between 2005 and 2019 

Date Source: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-

statistics-2005-to-2019 

 

Agenda Page 135 Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019


 

 

4. Moving Forward 
 

4.1. This dataset represents the baseline figures for comparison moving forward and 
will be used to inform actions within Climate Change strategy updates and 
progression of decarbonisation activities.  
 

4.2. Further progressions and actions can be made once the baseline dataset is 
compared against recent carbon footprints.  

 

4.3. The carbon footprint will be monitored annually with future and update reports will 
be produced moving forward 

 

The Council 

4.4. With gas and electricity accounting for over two thirds of the Councils emissions, 
the decarbonisation of the assets is essential. The Council will determine the 
feasibility and carbon reduction of adding carbon reducing measures to the main 
Council assets.  
 

4.5. The third highest emission source was the fleets transportation. This data source 
was averaged due to the lack of a full annual set, measures will be taken so that 
a more accurate dataset can be collected in 2022. The Council will continue to 
progressively electrify the fleet as a long-term action within the climate change 
programme.  

 

 

The Borough  
4.6. Whilst it is clear that overall emissions from the borough are reducing work within 

the community and which businesses can be taken to aid in the lowering of 

emissions as the borough.  

 

0.0

100.0

200.0

300.0

400.0

500.0

600.0

700.0

800.0

900.0

1,000.0

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

K
tC

O
2

 

Agenda Page 136 Agenda Item 10



4.7. Chorley borough has a large proportion of through traffic due to major roads and 
motorways crossing through the borough. As a local authority no action can be 
enforced to lower through traffic emissions however work can be taken to support 
sustainable transport for the residents which is reflected within the strategy.  

 
4.8. Work will continue to be taken to work with and support the community to lower 

the emissions from the borough.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Page 137 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Chorley Sustainable Business Award  

Business and Background:   

Company Name   

Company Address   

Website Address  

Business Sector   

Size (no. of employee’s)  

Contact Name  

Contact Number   

Contact Email  

Give a brief overview of your company  
 
 
 
 
 

Description of Product and Services  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Outline why your business should be considered for the award plus any supporting evidence (Max 
1000 words). Including: 

 How your business has taken steps to reduce it’s environmental impact 

 How is it supporting the net zero strategy  

 How is it engaging employee’s, customers and the community in it’s environmental 
efforts?  

 What innovative ideas has your business implemented to lower it’s environmental 
impact?  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 139 Agenda Item 10



Chorley Sustainable Building Award  

Building Information and Background:  

Building Purpose (home, 
business etc) 

 

Building Address   

Size   

Contact Name  

Contact Number   

Contact Email  

Give a brief overview of the building 
 
 
 
 
 

Description of building purpose and use 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Outline why your building should be considered for the award plus any supporting evidence (Max 
1000 words). Include:  

 How the building has lowered it’s environmental impact 

 What measures have been taken to lower the buildings carbon footprint  

 What innovative ideas has been implemented to lower the buildings environmental 
impact 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Page 140 Agenda Item 10



 

 

Town Hall 
Market Street 
Chorley 
PR7 1DP 

Date:   10th January 2020 
Our Ref: Notice of Motion  
 
 
Via email: 

 
robert.jenrick@mp@parliament.uk  
andrea.leadsom.mp@parliament.uk  
shappsg@parliament.uk  
theresa@theresavilliers.co.uk  
 
 

 

Dear Sir / Madam,  

 

At the Council meeting in November Chorley Council agreed a Notice of Motion recognising the 

scale and urgency of the global challenge from climate change, as documented by the latest 

Special Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, and declared a climate 

emergency.  

 

As part of this I agreed to write to yourselves calling for the creation, provision or devolution of 

powers and resources to make achievement of the target and make Chorley carbon neutral by 

2030 possible. 

 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
 

 

Councillor Alistair Bradley  

Executive Leader, Chorley Council 

Email: alistair.bradley@chorley.gov.uk 

Tel:  01257 515104 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 141 Agenda Item 10



  

 

Town Hall 
Market Street 
Chorley 
PR7 1DP 

Date:  

Our Ref: 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT LETTER – SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 
 
Dear Sir / Madam,  
 
In the most recently published IPCC report it concluded that climate change is unequivocally due to 
human activities. The effects of climate change are already evidently clear throughout the UK, with 
specific climate related effects occurring within the Chorley Borough.  
 
The extreme flooding within the borough, has become more frequent and dangerous impacting 
residents’ homes and livelihoods throughout the borough, with the Croston Flood Defenses having 
already costed the government £7.5 million. Chorley Borough has the largest percentage of 
ancient woodland in Lancashire with a high biodiversity, extreme heat threatens these sites which 
require specialist maintenance. Agriculture within Chorley accounts for 40% of land use, with 
extreme temperature and changes is pesticide and herbicide legislation, specific support and 
guidance is required for our Farmers.  
 
Chorley Borough has specific requirements to ensure the mitigation and adaptation. Chorley 
Council, like many Councils, has set itself the goal to be net zero by 2030, this is 20 years ahead of 
the governments 2050 net zero goal.  
 
This Council is again calling for the creation, provision or devolution of powers and resources to 
make achievement of the target to make Chorley carbon neutral by 2030 possible. As well as the 
increase in specific funds for climate change mitigation in order for Council’s to make significant 
changes.  
 
Yours sincerely  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 142 Agenda Item 10



  

 

Town Hall 
Market Street 
Chorley 
PR7 1DP 

Date:  

Our Ref:  

 

 

DRAFT LETTER – SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

 
Dear Sir / Madam,  
 
Following the publishing of the governments Net Zero Strategy and Lancashire’s County Councils 
Greater Lancashire Action Plan, it is clear a primary focus of work is the shift to the electric 
supplying renewables and electric powered vehicles.  
 
The charging of electric vehicles and heating systems such as air/ground source heat pumps 
require large amounts of electricity during peak and off-peak times. The capacity and cable 
capacity of the National Grid was not originally designed for such high usages within households. 
Within more rural boroughs such as Chorley, residents have concerns that the demand capacity 
will not be met. 
 
This is a call to ensure that sufficient funding is made available to increase electrical capacity and 
to ensure that capacity of the grid to households is focused on rural areas of the north, such as 
Chorley.  

 

Yours sincerely  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 143 Agenda Item 10



  

 

Town Hall 
Market Street 
Chorley 
PR7 1DP 

Date:  

Our Ref:  

 

 

DRAFT LETTER – SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 
Dear Sir / Madam,  
 
The government’s announcement to ban the selling of new diesel and petrol cars by 2030, displays 
the governments clear goal to move to electric and potential hydrogen vehicles. Many UK 
businesses, manufactures, and local Councils have embraced the shift expending large sums of 
money to aid in this transition.  
 
Charging points are expected to be installed along pavements, in carparks, in homes and 
workplaces.   A significant increase in electrical demand is anticipated, with residents charging 
their cars. Whilst the national grid has stated that there is sufficient energy in the system, 
projections show this capacity will be exceeded in evenings when most drivers are expected to 
charge their vehicles.  
 
This is a request to ensure that sufficient funding is made available to power operators and the 
national grid to ensure that electrical supply and capacity it sufficient UK wide. Special 
consideration should be taken for electrical supply to rural areas of the North West of England, 
especially Chorley.  
 

Yours sincerely  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 144 Agenda Item 10



  

 

Town Hall 
Market Street 
Chorley 
PR7 1DP 

Date:  

Our Ref:  

 

 

 

DRAFT LETTER – SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

 

 
Dear Sir / Madam,  
 
The Sustainable Warmth Strategy published in February 2021 requires an increase in the Minimum 
Energy Efficiency Standards for private rented homes to EPC Band C by 2030 where affordable, 
practical and cost effective.  
 
This improvement in energy efficiency will be beneficial to many residents within Chorley. Whilst 
the Local Authority Delivery of the Green Homes Grants allows Chorley Council to support the 
delivery of the energy efficiency improvements, the enforcement of these improvements is not 
sufficient.  
 
This is a call to devolve further powers to local authorities to ensure private landlords and social 
housing providers are meeting the new energy efficiency standards which can be managed and 
monitored at a local level.  
 

Yours sincerely  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 145 Agenda Item 10



  

 

Town Hall 
Market Street 
Chorley 
PR7 1DP 

Date:  

Our Ref:  

 

 

 

DRAFT LETTER – SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

 

 
Dear Sir/ Madam,  
 
The new Levelling Up White Paper which was published in February 2022 details the governments 
goal for local public transport connectivity across the country to be significantly closer to the 
standards of London, with improvements to services, simpler fares and integrated ticketing.  
 
The lack of detailing relating to this transport improvement has been noted by numerous Councils. 
Chorley borough is classified as a semi-rural area, with public transport connections between 
towns and villages being limited and far between.  
 
Residents within the borough continually request improvements and major investment to bus and 
train services, walking and cycling paths and increased frequency of public transport routes. 
 
This is a request for greater detail to be provided regarding the local public transport connectivity of 
the Levelling Up Scheme and to ensure that particular consideration has been considered 
regarding more rural areas, especially within Lancashire which have not been specifically noted.  
 

Yours sincerely 

Agenda Page 146 Agenda Item 10



 

OVERVIEW AND SCUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 

 

To be considered: 24 Jun 1 Jul 30 Sept 28 Oct 16 Dec 13 Jan 27 Jan 10 Mar 17 Mar 

OSPP OSC OSC OSPP OSPP OSPP OSC OSPP OSC 

Panel Meeting (OSPP) to 
consider Council and 
related performance in 
addition to scrutiny of key 
service areas  

* 

Customer 
and Digital 

 

 * 
Planning and 
Developmen

t 

* 
Policy and 

Governance 

* 
Communities 

 * 
Commercial 
and Property 

 

 

 

Performance Report /  
Business Plans 

Quarter Four   Business 
Plans Quarter Two 

Business 
Plans 

  
Business 

Plans 

 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance Panel 
minutes 

 * *    *  * 

Executive Cabinet Minutes 
 * *    *  * 

Notice of Executive 
Decisions 

 * *    *  * 

Health Scrutiny 
 * *    *  * 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Work Programme 

 * *    *  * 

Annual Reporting Back   * 
       

Budget Scrutiny   
    *   

Response to Covid-19 
 *        

First Aid 
  *       

 
         

Scrutiny Reviews   
       

Sustainable Public 
Transport 

  M1      M2 

Developing the Council’s 
Green Agenda 

  M2      M3 

Quality of housing 
provided by social 
landlords 

        M2 

          

Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny 

      *   

          

Task Group – Select 
Move 

      V  V 

          

Potential topics for 
future reviews 

         

Select Move review   *       

Magistrates        *   

Education and access to 
school places 

         

Grass cutting/verge 
update 

        * 

    
    
    
  
Task Group Reviews:  
S        Scoping of the review  R Feedback/response from the Exec Cab 
C        Collecting and considering the evidence  M Monitoring Reports, 1 2 and 3 (if required) 
FR      Final report of the review  V Verbal update from the Chair 
    

Agenda Page 147 Agenda Item 13



    
 

Agenda Page 148 Agenda Item 13


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 27 January 2022 of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	5 Executive Cabinet Minutes
	6 Notice of Executive Decisions
	7 Health Scrutiny Update
	Health work programme 2021-22 (1)

	9 Sustainable Public Transport Second Monitoring Report 2
	10 Developing the Councils Green Agenda - Monitoring Report 3
	Appendix 1 - Carbon Footprint Audit 2019
	Appendix 2 - Draft Green Business Award Application
	Appendix 3 - Draft Government Letters

	13 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

